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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9200 I-801W152-3345 Eit 9200

Fax: 603-271-4912 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 wvm.dhhs.nh.gov

May 29. 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
. and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

INFORMATIONAL ITEM
t

Pursuant to RSA 4:45, RSA 4:47, and Section 4 of Executive Order 2020-04 as extended
by Executive Orders 2020-05, 2020-08, and 2020-09, Governor Sununu has authorized the
Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health Sen/ices, to ,enter into
Retroactive, Sole Source contracts with the vendors listed below, in the amount of $200,000 to
provide telemedicine services for uninsured residents of New Hampshire who are experiencing
COVID-19 related signs or symptoms and to have one vendor provide the coordination of testing
for long-term health care workers, with the option to extend in accordance with the terms included
in these agreements, from the dates below through June 30, 2020.100% General Funds.

Vendor Name
Vendor

Code
Area Served

Contract

Amount

Retroactive Date

Health First

Family Care
Center

158221-8001 Merrimack County $100,000

April 23, 2020

Mid-State Health

Center
158055-8001 Grafton County $100,000

April 20, 2020

Total: $200,000

Funds are available iri the following account for State Fiscal Year 2020, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation through the Budget Office, if needed and
justified.

06-95-95-950010-56760000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS

DEPT OF, HHS: COMMISSIONER'S OFFICE, OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER. OFFICE OF
BUSINESS OPERATIONS

State

Fiscal Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 103-502664 Contracts for Oper Svc 95010999 $200,000

Total $200,000

EXPLANATION

This item is Retroactive and Sole Source to allow the Department to quickly provide
telemedicine services to uninsured residents to effectively respond to the COVID-19 Pandemic.
The purpose of this contract is to provide uninsured residents of New Hampshire medical services
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to treat the signs and symptoms of COVID-19, during the State of Emergency. Uninsured
individuals typically seek non-emergent care at hospitals, due to hospitals requirement to provide
care to uninsured patients. The Department requested these contracts be effective April 20,2020,
and April 23,2020, because the Department needed to quickly establish contractual relationships
to be prepared for a surge of individuals seeking medical attention at hospitals.

The exact number of uninsured residents of the State of New Hampshire served from April
20, 2020, to June 30, 2020, will depend on the trajectory of the COVID-19 pandemic.

The vendors will be providing telemedicihe visits to individuals who are uninsured and
reside in New Hampshire to treat the signs or symptoms of COVID-19. If the vendor's healthcare
provider orders a COVID-19 test, vendors will coordinate the specimen, collection, processing,
coordination with a reference laboratory for testing and communication with the uninsured
individuals conceming the test results and recommendations for further treatment based on the
test results.

As referenced In the attached Agreement; the parties have the option to extend in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement contingerit upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and appropriate State approval.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds

Respectfully submitted,

.ori A. Shibinette y
Commissioner

7%e Department of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



AGREEMENT BETWEEN

THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEAPRTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES,
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH

AND

HealthFirst Family Care Center

This Agreement dated this day of April 2020 is entered into by and between the State of
New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
("DPH"), and HealthFirst Family Care Center (HFFCC) having their principal office at 841
Central Street, Franklin, NH 03235 (hereafter, collectively, "HealthFirst").

WHEREAS, consistent with the Governor's Executive Order 2020-04 as extended by Executive
order 2020-05, DPH is working to respond to the growing outbreak of COVID-19;

WHEREAS, approximately 81,000 residents of New Hampshire are uninsured, many of whom
may need medical services to treat the signs and symptoms of COVID-19;

.WHEREAS, uninsured individuals typically seek non-emergent care at hospitals, due to the
hospitals' capacity and ability to provide uncoropensated care to the residents of NH,

WHEREAS, in preparation for the hospital surge expected as a result of the COVrD-19
outbreak, DPH must manage the availability of hospitd services available to all residents of
NH, -

WHEREAS, HFFCC is the owner and operator of a Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC),
Planned Parenthood Clinic, or FQHC Look-a-Like;

WHEREAS, HFFCC has the capacity to offer non-emergent services to uninsured individuals
at a discounted rate paid for by the Department of Health and Human Services; and

WHEREAS, by providing for the uninsured individuals to receive non-emergent care at these
walk-in center locations, DPH is better able to keep hospital services available for those
needing emergency care for the freatment of COVID-19;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained herein,
the parties agree:

1. Services to be provided:

A. HFFCC shall provide telemedicine visits to individuals who are uninsured and reside
in New Hampshire to triage, screen, and treat the signs or symptoms of COVID-19 during the
State of Emergency in New Hampshire declared pursuant to Executive Order 2020-04 as

extended by Executive order 2020-05.



Telemedicine visits provided by HFFCC for individuals for issues unrelated to COVID-19 shall
not be included within the services to be rendered under the Agreement.

B. At the conclusion of a telemedicine visit with a HFFCC healthcare provider in which
the provider has ordered a SARS-CoV-2 (virus that causes COVID-19) test, HFFCC shall
coordinate the specimen collection, processing, coordination with a reference laboratory for
testing, and communication with the uninsured individual concerning the test result and
recommendations for further treatment based on the test result.

C. HFFCC shall commence the services upon signature of both parties.

2. Payment for Services:

A. For each telemedicine visit provided under this Agreement, DPH shall pay HFFCC
$99.00.

B. DPH reserves the right to offset from any amounts otherwise payable to HFFCC
under this Agreement those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

C. HFFCC shall submit an invoice to DHHS by the fifteenth (15th) working day of the
following month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized e}q)enses incurred
in the prior month. HFFCC shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to DHHS in
order to initiate payment. The invoices shall include: name of patient seen and the date of
service.

D. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to Mary.Calise@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Mary Calise
Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

F. The State shall make payment to HFFCC within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted inyoice and if sufficient funds are available.

3. Price Limitation:

A. The total to be paid or reimbursed under this Agreement fi-om DPH to HFFCC shall
not exceed $100,000.00. If the volume of uninsured individuals receiving care and/or testing
under this Agreement is high, DPH and HFFCC may increase this limit upon mutual agreement
by the parlies with appropriate approvals as required pursuant to the laws of the State of New
Hampshire for government contracting.

B. Notwithstanding my provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of



DPH hereundcr, including, without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, arc
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds affected by any state or
federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the scope of service.

4. Effective Date and Duration: The Term of this Agreement shall commence upon
signature from both parties and shall terminate on June 30, 2020, unless sooner terminated or
extended in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

5.. Indemnification: Unless otherwise exempted by law, HFFCC shall indemnify and hold
hannless the State, its officers and employees, from and against any and all claims, liabilities and
costs for any personal injury or property damages, patent or copyright infringement,- or other
claims asserted against the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oQ the acts or omissions of HFFCC, or subcontractors, including but not
limited to negligent, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not be liable for any costs
incurred by HFFCC arising under this paragraph. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign immunity of the State, which
immunity is hereby reserved to the State. This covenant shall survive the termination of this
Agreement.

6. Confidentiality: Any and all confidential information obtained or received by HFFCC
shall be kept confidential and shall not be disclosed to anyone for any reason. "Confidential
Information" means all information owned, managed, created, or received from the Individuals,
DPH, any other agency of the State, or any medical provider, that is protected by Federal or
State information security, privacy or confidentiality laws or rules. Confidential Information
includes, but is not limit^ to. Derivative Data, protected health information (PHI),^ personally
identifiable information (PII), federal tax information (FTI), Social Security Administration
information (SSA) and criminal justice information services (CJIS) and any other sensitive
confidential information provided under the Agreement. This covenant shall survive the
termination of the Agreement.

7. Assignment: HFFCC shall not assign any interest in this Agreement without prior written
notice, which shall be provided to DPH at least fifteen (15) days prior to the assignment, and a
written consent of DPH. For purposes of this paragraph, a Change of Coritrol shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger, consolidation, or a transaction or series of
related transactions in which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the direct or
indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting shares .or similar equity interests, or
combined voting power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of
the Contractor.

8. Modification: No modification of this Agreement shall be binding upon the other Party
unless made in writing and agreed upon by both Parties to this Agreement. Either Party may
terminate this Agreement for any reason or for no reason upon thirty (30) days written notice to
the other Party.



9. Severability: In the event that any provision of this Agreement shall be held by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the validity, legality and
enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected and shall
remain in fiill force and affect.

10. Jurisdiction: This Agreement shall be governed by, interpreted and enforced under the
laws of the State of New Hampshire without making reference to its conflicts of lavN^ or choice
of laws provisions. The Parties consent to a state court located in the state of New Hampshire as
having the sole jurisdiction of any and all controversies that may arise under this Agreement.

11. Entire Agreement: This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding
between the parties, and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings relating hereto.

DULY signed and authorized by:

Mdtdof New Hampshire, Department of
Health and Human Services, Division

of Public Health

HFFCC

Russ&ll (a. CEO

(-] .'lo .7-0
Date' Date

Attorney General's Office (form, substance and execution):

5/8/2020

Attorney



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M.'Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that HEALTHFJRST FAMILY
CARE CENTER, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonpront Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on April 23.
1996.1 further certiiy that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good
standing as far as this office is conccmed.

Business ID: 248976

Urn

A

&

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Stale ofNew Hampshire,

this 24th day of April A.D. 2017.

William M. Gardner

Secretaiy of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE
(Corporation without Seal)

I. Michael Stanley, do hereby certify that:

1. I am the duly elected Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors for the Nonprofit Corporation
HealthFirst Family Care Center. Inc.

2. James Wells is the duly elected Chairman of the Board of the Corporation.

3. Russell G. Keene is the duly appointed President and Chief Executive Officer f CEO) of the Corporation.

4. The following resolution was adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors held on the 23rd dav of October.
2019:

RESOLVED: That the Chairman of the Board of HealthFirst Family Care Center. Inc. and/or the President
and CEO are hereby authorized on behalf of this Corporation to enter into Board-approved and previousiy
authorized contracts with agencies of the-Federal government and the State of New Hampshire and to
execute any and all documents, agreements, and^pther instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or
modifications related thereto, as they may deem necessary, desirable, or appropriate as directed by the
Board.

5. The forgoing resolution has not been amended or revoked, and remains in full force and effect as of the
20"^ day of April. 2020 by Michael Stanley.

signa'Uire Chairman)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Merrimack

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged t)efore me this

Signature of Notary
My Commission Expires:
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THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOUm THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING tNSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pdllcy(ies) must have AOpmONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the termsand.condUlonsof the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
»ht« HAm nni r.onter riohts to the certificate holder in lieu of euch endorsement/s).

kooucBP License PAORBi 60
Clark insurance

One Sundial Ave Suite 302N
Manchester, NH 03103

Jessica Thamm

ri?" wj: (603) 622-2855 ' | Mg. hoI:(603) 622-2854
^tM.ithammflUclarklnsurance.com .

iHSunemsi afforwmo covbraos NAICS

iH.<tuRERA:Cltlzens Ins Co of America 31634

INSUREO

HeaJthFlrst Family Care Center, Inc.
641 Central St
Franklin, NH 03235

iNMRERRiMassachusetts Bav 22308

INSUREREi

INSURER P:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSUIVWCE LISTED BELOWHAVE SEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABO^ FOR THE POLI^ PERIOD
INDICATEO NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT VMTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERT^^ATE WY BE THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SU8JBCTT0 ALL THE TERMS.
FXCl^uSs AND CONOmONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS ^

(MM

JJB.
TYPE OF IKSURANCe

AODL
IN80

COKMeRCULOEHBRAL UABtllTV

CLAIMS MAOe OCCUR

(gNlAGOR^Sa^
POLICY

f LIMIT AP£

H
.$ PER;

LOC

OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE UABILITY

ANY AUTO

SJJft^foNLY

Moniv

B WORKERS CpMPEKMTION
AMD EMPLOYERS' LiABiLTTY

UMBRELLA LIAB

6XCESS LIAB

lEO

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE

OEP I X [ RETENTION $

SUBR

OBVA044172

iR/P^N^€^CUTIveAMYP

inBIiofyTii RR)

OPERATIONS bMw

Y/N

N/A

POLICY NUMB6R

OBVA044172

OBVA044172

7/1/2019

7/1/2019

WDVA044167

7/1/2019

7/1/2020

7/1/2020

EACH OCCURRENCE

TO RENTED
' jEBJsaiittiML

MEO BXP tAnv Oft* P«rtonI

PERSONAL A ADV INJURY

GENERAL AQOREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGO

1.000,000

300.000

6,000

1,000.000

2.000,000

2,000,000

COMBiNEO SINGLE LIMIT
fE»«cekitct»

POOILY INJURY <P»f flSftOfll

BODILY INAIRY (Pf twiljwil
lAMAOE

7/1/2020

7/1/2019 7/1/2020

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

fPER
1 STATUTE

P L. EACH ACCIDENT

E L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L DISEASE -POUCY UMIT

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

600,000

500.000

500,000

OESCWPTIOK OP OPBRATIOKSI LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORO 101, AtfdrtlOMi R«m*rti$ 8ch»dtili, miy b* H mcr» tp*e* U Mijulrtd)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

NH DHHS

129 Ploasant Streot
Concord, NH 03301

CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED RBPHeSEHTATTVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
® 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights rosorvod.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



HealthFirst

Our Mission
wsm

It is the mission of
HealthFirst Family Care Center, Inc.

to provide high quality primary healthcare,
treatment, prevention and education

services required by the residents of the
service area, regardless of inab ility tp pay

or insurance status, depending upon
available HealthFirst resources.

HealthFirst coordinates and cooperates

care providers to assure the people of the
region the fullest possible range

services.
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STANDARDS AND THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

September 30, 2019 and 2018

With Independent Auditor's Report
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors
HealthFlrst Family Care Center, Inc.

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of HealthFirst Family Care Center, Inc., which
comprise the balance sheets as of September 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements of
operations and changes In net assets, functional expenses, and cash flov\rs for the years then ended;
and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Manaigement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles: this includes • the design,
Implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's ResponsibUlty

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits In accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures In
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, Including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, in making those risk assessmerits, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements In order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also"
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Maine • New Hampshire • Massachusetts • Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizona

barrydunacom



Board of Directors
HealthFlrst Family Care Center, Inc.
Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of HealthFlrst Family Care Center, inc. as of September 30. 2019 and 2018, and the
results of its operations, changes in Its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Chango in Accounting Principles

As discussed In Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2019 HeaithFirst Family Care Center, Inc.
adopted new accounting guidance. Financial Accounting Standards Board . Accounting Standards
Updates No. 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) and
No. 2016-18, Restricted Cash (Topic 230). Our opinion is not modified with respect to these matters.

Other Matter

Our audit was conducted for the purposes of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, end
Audit Requirements for Federal Avi/ards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and Is not a
required part of the financial statements. Such Information Is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing prot^dures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, in our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accor^dance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 28,
2020 on our consideration of HeaithFirst Family. Care Center, Inc.'s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certaln.provisions of laws, regulations.'contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of HeaithFirst Family Care Center, Inc.'s internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report Is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards In considering HeaithFirst Family Care Center, Inc.'s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

i L-UL.

Portland, Maine
January 28, 2020



HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Balance Sheets

September 30, 2019 and 2018

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term certificates of deposit
Patient accounts receivable, net
Grants receivable

Other current assets

Total current assets

Investment in limited liability companies
Long-term certificates of deposit
Assets limited as to use

Property and equipment, net

Total assets

LjABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Line of credit

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Deferred revenue

Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, less current portion

Total liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

Total liabilities and net assets

291?

$  924,646 $  967,652
181,160 77,246

626,349 657,255
288,344 77,268
fifi.321 50.262

2,074,809 1,829,683

20,433 23,228
63,044 51,851

177,164 168,136
1.S20.729 1.669.431

$ 3.946.189 $ 3.742.329

$  29,787 $  71,787

69,066 ■  107,411
313,437 237,298
33,633 53,425

55.663 53.446

491,475 523,367

1.493.272 1.547.634

1,984,747 2,071,001

1.961.422 1.671.328

$ 3.946.169 S 3.742.329

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-3-



HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Statements of Operations and Changes In Net Assets

Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

Operating revenue
Patient service revenue

Provision for bad debts

Net patient service revenue

Grants, contracts and contributions
Equity in (loss) earnings of limited liability companies
Other operating revenue

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Program supplies
Contracted services

Occupancy
Other

Depreciation
Interest expense

Total operating expenses

Excess of revenue over expenses and increase in
net assets without donor restrictions

Net assets, beginning of year

2m 2m

$ 3,865,747 $ 3,566,581
f496.816l

3,683,832 3.069.765

2,162,608 2,035,490
(2.795) 1,956

266.031 215.402

6.989.676 5.322.613

3,317,381 2,861,622
690,489 624,531

415,946 301,394
337,816 341,964

101,496 110,861
694,713 579,534
73,156 76.375

68.685 71.493

5.699.682 4.967.774

290,094 354,839

1.671.328 1.316.489

Net assets, end of year $ 1,971.3^9

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-4-



HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Statements of Functional Expenses

Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Program supplies
Contracted services
Occupancy
Other

Depreciation
Interest

Total operating expenses

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Program supplies
Contracted services

Occupancy
Other

Depreciation
Interest

Total operating expenses

Healthcare

Services

2019

Support
Services Total

$ 2,770,284 $ 547,117 $ 3,317,381

576,611 113,878 690,489

416,946 - 415,946

269,903 67,913 337,816

84,757 16,739 101,496

680,140 114,673 694,713

61,091 12,065 73,166

57.274 11.311 68.685

$ 4.815.986 $ 883.696 $ 6.699.682

Healthcare

Services

2018

Support
Services Total

2,372,947 $ 488,675 $ 2,861,622

517,880 106,651 624,531

301,394 - 301,394

246.071 95,893 341,964

91,929 18,932 110,861

480,569 98,965 579,534

63,333 13,042 76.375

59.283 12.210 71.493

i  4.133.406 $ 834.368 $ 4.967.774

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-5-



HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2Q19 ?018

Cash flows from operating activities
Change In net assets $ 290,094 $ 354,839

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities
Provision for bad debts 301,916 496,816

Depreciation 73,156 76,375

Equity in loss (earnings) of limited liability companies 2,795 (1.956)
(Increase) decrease in the following assets

Patient accounts receivable (270,009) (456,159)

. Grants receivable (211,076) (4.964)

Other current assets (5,059) (37,558)

Increase (decrease) in the following liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (48,346) 52,534

Accrued payroll and related expenses 76,139 29,194

Deferred revenue (19.7921 21.126

Net cash provided by operating activities 189.817' 530.247

Cash flows from investing activities . .
Capital expenditures (24,454) -

Purchases of Investments (100,000) -

■ Reinvested interest from certificates of deposit (5.0971 (1.387)

Net cash used by investing activities (129.5511 fi:3871

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayments on line of credit (42,000) (29,417)

Principal payments on long-term debt (52.2551 (50.1871

Net cash used by financing activities (94.2551 (79.6041

Net (decrease) Increase in cash and cash equivaients
and restricted cash . (33,989) 449,256

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of year 1.135.788 686.532

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year $ 1.101.799 $ 1.135.788

Breakdown of cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash,
end of year
Cash and cash equivalents $ 924,645 $ 967,652

Assets limited as to use 177.154 168.136

$

o

Li
D(

CD

$

cx>
00

Supplemental cash flow disclosure
Cash paid for interest $ 68.585 $ 71.495

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements.

-6-



HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30,2019 and 2018

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

HealthFirst Family Care Center, Inc. (the Organization) is a not-for-profit corporation organized in
the State of New Hampshire. The Organization is a Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC)

. providing high-quality primary healthcare, treatment, prevention, and education services required
by the residents In the Twin Rivers Region of New Hampshire, commensurate with available
resources, and coordinating and cooperating with other community and regional healthcare
providers to ensure the people of the region the fullest possible range of health sen/ices.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Issued Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) No. 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic
958), which makes targeted changes to the not-for-profit financial reporting model. The ASU marks
the completion of the first phase of a larger project aimed at improving not-for-profit financial
reporting. Under the ASU. net asset reporting is streamlined and clarified. The existing three
category classification of net assets is replaced with a simplified, model that combines temporarily
restricted and permanently restricted into a single category called "net assets with donor
restrictions." The guidance simplified the reporting of deficiencies in endowment funds and clarified
the accounting for the lapsing of restrictions on gifts to acquire property, plant and equipment. New
disclosures which highlight restrictions on the use of resources that make otherwise liquid assets
unavailable for meeting near-term financial requirements have been added. The ASU also imposes
several new requirements related to reporting expenses. The Organization has adjusted the
presentation of these statements accordingly. The ASU has been applied retrospectively to 2018;
however, there was no Impact to total net assets, results of operations or cash flows.

In November 2016, FASB issued ASU No. 2016-18, Restricted Cash (Topic 230), which requires,
that a statement of cash flows explain the change during the period in the total of cash, cash
equivalents, and amounts generally described as restricted cash or restricted cash equivalents.
Therefore, amounts generally described as restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents should
be included with cash and cash equivalents when reconciling the beginning-of-period and end-of-
period total amounts shown on the statement of cash flows. The ASU is effective for fiscal years
beginning on or after December 15, 2018. The Organization adopted ASU No. 2016-18 in 2019,
and restated its 2018 statement of cash flows to conform to the provisions thereof.

Basis of Presentation
y  '

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared In accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP), which requires the Organization to report
information In the financial statements according to the following net asset classifications:

(

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's management
and the Board of Directors.
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HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations Imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary In nature: those restrictions will be met by actions
of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual In nature,
whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained In perpetuity.

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair , value at the date the
promise is received, which is then treated as cost. The gifts are reported as net assets with donor
restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets.
When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets without
donor restrictions and reported in the statement of operations and changes in net assets as net
assets released from restriction. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met in the
same year as received are reflected as contributions without donor restrictions in the
accompanying financial statements.

Gifts of long-lived assets, such as land, buildings, or equipment, are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used.
Gifts of long-lived assets vvith explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and
gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as net
assets with donor restrictions. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-lived
assets must be. maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or
acquired long-lived assets are placed in service. Grants and contributions whose restrictions are
met within the same year as recognized are reported as net assets without donor restrictions in the
accompanying financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also
affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes

The Organization is a public charity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As a
public charity, the Organization is exempt from state and federal income taxes on Income earned In
accordance with its tax-exempt purpose. Unrelated business income is subject to state and federal
income tax. Management has evaluated the Organization's tax positions and concluded that the
Organization has no unrelated business income or uncertain tax positions that require adjustment
to the financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits and highly liquid Investments with a
maturity of three months or less.
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HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

The Organization maintains cash and certificate of deposit balances at several financial
institutions. The balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to
$250,000. At various times throughout the year, the Organization's balances may exceed FDIC
insurance. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and managennent
believes it is not exposed to any significant risk.

Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. Patient accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for uncollectible
accounts. In evaluating the collectibility of patient accounts receivable, the Organization analyzes
its past collection history and identifies trends for all funding sources in the aggregate. In addition,
all balances in excess of 90 days are 100% reserved. Management regularly reviews revenue and
payer mix data in evaluating the sufficiency of the allowance for uncollectible accounts. Amounts
not collected after all reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted are applied against the
allowance for uncollectible accounts.

Grants Receivable

Grants receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. All such amounts are considered collectible.

The Organization receives a significant amount of grants" from the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS). As with all government funding, these grants are subject to reduction or
termination in future years. For the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, grants from
DHHS (Including both direct awards and awards passed through other organizations) represented
approximately 86% and 73%. respectively, of grants, contracts and contributions revenue.

Investment In Limited Liability Companies

Primary Health Care Partners (PHCP)

The Organization is one,of eight partners who each made a capital contribution of $500 to PHCP.
The purposes of PHCP are: (i) to engage and contract directly with the payers of health care to
influence the design and testing of emerging payment methodologies; (ii) to achieve the three part
aim of better care for Individuals, better health for populations and lower growth in expenditures in
connection with both governmental and non-governmental payment systems; (ill) to undertake Joint
activities to offer access to high quality, cost effective medical, mental health, oral health, home
care and other community-based services, based upon the Patient-Centered Medical Home model
of primary care delivery, that promote health and well-being by developing and Implementing
effective clinical and administrative systems in a manner that is aligned with the FQHC model, and
to lead collaborative efforts to manage costs and improve the quality of primary care services
delivered by health centers operated throughout the State of New Hampshire; and (iv) to engage in
any and all lawful activities, including without limitation the negotiation of contracts, agreements
and/or arrangements (with payers and other, parties). The Organization's investment in PHCP is
reported using the equity method and the investment amounted to $19,099 and $22,589 at,
December 31, 2018 and 2017. respectively, the reporting period of PHCP.
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HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Community Health Services Network/LLC fCHSN)

The Organization became one of thirteen partners by making a capital contribution of $1,000 to
CHSN during 2017. CHSN's primary focus Is to increase the level of integration of coordinated care
across the service delivery system amongst agencies providing medical care, behavioral health,
and substance use disorder treatment. All of the services in which the Organization is involved in
this project are within the scope as an FOHC, Including interagency collaboration, direct delivery of
substarice abuse disorder counseling services and care coordination and outreach services. The
Organization's investment in CHSN is reported using the equity method and the Investment
amounted to $1,334 and $639 at December 31, 2018 and 2017. respectively, the reporting period
of CHSN.

frssets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use Include cash and cash equivalents set aside under loan agreements for.
repairs and maintenance on the real property collateralizing the loan, and assets designated by the
Board of Directors for specific projects or purposes as discussed further in Note 7.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Maintenance, repairs
and minor renewals are expensed as incurred and renewals and betterments are capitalized.
Provision for depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue Is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-
party payers, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with third-party payers. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an
estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as
final settlements are detennlned.

3408 Drug Pricing Program

The Organization, as an FQHC, Is eligible to participate in the 340B Drug Pricing Program, This
program requires drug manufacturers to provide outpatient drugs to FQHCs and other identified
entities at a reduced price. The Organization contracts with local pharmacies under this program.
The local pharmacies dispense drugs to eligible patients of the Organization and bill Medicare and
commercial insurances on behalf of the Orgariization. Reimbursement received by the pharmacies
is remitted to the Organization, less dispensing arid administrative fees. Gross revenue generated
from the program Is included in patient sen/ice revenue. The cost of drug replenishments and
contracted expenses incurred related to the program are included in program supplies arid
contracted services, respectively.
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HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Functional Expenses

The financlarstatements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to more than
one program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a reasonable
basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that are allocated include employee benefits,
occupancy, depreciation, interest, and other, operating expenses, which are allocated between
healthcare services and administrative support based on the percentage of direct care wages to
total wages.

Subsequent Events

For purposes. of tbe preparation of these financial statements, management has considered
transactions or events occurring through January 28, 2020, the date that the financial statements
were available to be issued. Management has not evaluated subsequent events after that date for
Inclusion In the financial statements.

2. AvallablHtv and Liquidity of Financial Assets

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments. The Organization has various sources of liquidity at its disposal,
including cash and cash equivalents, certificates of deposit and a line of credit.

The Organization had working capital of $1,583,334 and $1,306,316 at September 30, 2019 and
2018, respectively. The Organization had average days cash and cash equivalents and certificates
of deposit on hand (based on normal expenditures) of 75 and 82 at September 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

Financial assets available for general expenditure within one year as of Septemt>er 30 were as
follows:

2019 2018

Cash and cash equivalents $ 924,646 $ 967,652
Short-term certificates of deposit 181,160 77,246
Patient accounts receivable, net 626,349 657,256
Grants receivable 288.344 77.268

Financial assets available $ 2,0')9t4§S $ 1.779i421

The Organization has certain board-designated assets Ijmited to use which are available for
general expenditure within one year in the normal course of operations upon obtaining approval
from the Board of Directors. The Organization has other assets limited to use under certain loan
agreements which are available for general expenditure within one year for maintenance and
repairs on the Organization's buildings upon obtaining approval from the lenders. Accordingly,
these assets have not been included in the qualitative information above.
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HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

The Organization's goai is generally to have, at the minimum, the Health Resources and Services
Administration recommended days cash and cash equivalents on hand for operations of 30 days.

The Organization has a line of credit with an available balance of $270,213 at September 30, 2019,
as discussed in more detail in Note 5.

3. Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable consisted of the following:

2019 2018

Patient accounts receivable $ 814,202 $ 851,483
Contract 340B pharmacy program receivables 71,147 59.1 P4

Total patient accounts receivable 885,349 910.587
. Allowance for doubtful accounts (260.0001 (253.3321

Patient accounts receivable, net $ 625,341 $ 657,25^

. A reconciliation of the allowance for uncollectible accounts follows:

2019 2018

Balance, beginning of year $ 263,332 $ 280.000
Provision for bad debts 301,915 496,816
Write-offs f295.2471 (523.4841

Balance, end of year $ 260iQOO $

The decrease in write-offs and provision for bad debt was due to a clean up of old accounts
receivable balances during 2018 which resulted in higher than normal amounts.

The Organization grants credit without collateral to its patients; most of whom are local-residents
and are Insured under third-party payer agreements. Prirnary payers representing 10% or more of
the Organization's gross patient accounts receivable are as follows:

2m zm

Medicare 30 % 25 %
Medicaid % 43 %

..^12-



HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER. INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

Land

Building and Improvements
Leasehold Improvements
Furniture and equipment

Total cost

Less accumulated depreciation

zm

$  109,217
1,999,966
121,676
316.528

2,646,386
926.667

2018

$  109,217
1.999.965

103.276
309.473

2.521,931
852.500

Property and equipment, net 3 1.620.729 $ 1.669.431

6. Line of Credit

The Organization has a $300,000 line of credit arrangement with a local bank payable on demand,
through March 2020. with interest at 5.5% at September 30. 2019. The outstanding balance on the
line of credit was $29,787 and $71.787 at September 30, 2019 and 2018. respectively. Borrowings
on the line of credit are collateralized by all of the Organization's business assets. The line of credit
contains a minimum debt service coverage covenant requirement which was met at September 30.
2019.

6. Lono-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the foiiowing:

zm 2018

4.125% promissory note payable to U.S. Department of
Agriculture. Rural Development (Rural Development)

.  through March 2037. paid in monthly installments of $8,186.
including .interest. The note Is collateralized by all tangible
property owned by the Organization.

3.375% promissory note payable to Rural Development,
through May 2052, paid in monthly installments of $1,384,
Including interest. The note Is collateralized by alt tangible
property owned by the Organization.

Total

Less current portion

Long-term debt, less current portion

$ 1,221,226 $ 1,268,028

327.600

1,548,826
66.663

333.052

1,601.080
53.446

$ 1.493.272 $ 1.547.634
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HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Maturities of long-term debt for the next five years are as follows;

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Thereafter

Total .

7. Net Assets

Net assets without donor restrictions are designated for the following

Undesignated
Repairs and maintenance on the real property collateralizing
Rural Development loans

Board-designated for
Working capital
Building improvements

Total

8. Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue was as follows:

Gross charges
Less:. Contractual adjustments

Sliding fee scale! discounts

Medical and dental patient service revenue
3408 pharmacy revenue

Total patient service revenue

$  55,553
56,833
59,173
61,609
64,146

1-251.511

$ 1.548.825

purposes:

zm

$ 1,784,268

102,107

40,000
3S.047

zm

$ 1,503,192

99.201,

40,000
28.935

$_ltS6142a $_im22S

zm

$ 4,643,586
(1,716,071)

<126.668)

2,800,947
1.064.800

2018

$ 4.162,432
(1,446,266)

<93.895)

2,622,271
944.310

6 3.86S.747 $ 3.566.581
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HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018 .

The mix of gross patient service revenue from patients and third-party payers was as follows:

2019 2018

Medicare 21 % 22 %
Medlcaid . 45 % , 46 %
Other payers 28 % 25 %
Self pay and sliding fee scale patients S % JL %

100 Vo 100 %

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare, Medicaid and 3408 programs are complex and
subject to Interpretation. The Organization believes that it is in compliance, with all laws and
regulations. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government
review and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties and
exclusion from the Medicare, Medicaid and 340B programs. Differences between amounts
previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be recoverable or payable are
included In patient service revenue in the year that such amounts become known.

A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payers follows:

Medicare

The Organization is reimbursed for the care of qualified patients on a prospective basis, with
retroactive settlements related to vaccine costs only. The prospective payment is based on a
geographically-adjusted rate determined by federal guidelines. Overall, reimbursement was and
continues to be subject to a maximum allowable rate per visit.-The Organization's Medicare cost
reports have been audited by the Medicare administrative contractor through September 30, 2018.

Medicaid and Other Pavers

The Organization is reimbursed by Medicaid for the care of qualified patients on a prospective
basis. Overall, reimbursement is subject to a maximum allowable rate per visit. The Organization
also has entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers, health
maintenance organizations and preferred provider organizations. Under these arrangements, the
Organization is reimbursed based on contractually obligated payment rates which may be less
than the Organization's public fee schedule.

Charitv Care

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its sliding fee discount
policy without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Organization does
not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as net
patient service revenue.
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HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

The Organization estimates the costs associated with providing charity care by calculating the ratio
of total cost to total charges, and then multiplying that ratio by the gross unconipensated charges
associated with providing care to patients eligible for free care. The estimated cost amounted to
approximately $145,553 and $106,101 for the years ended September 30. 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

The Organization is able to provide these services with a component of funds received through
local community support and federal and state grants.

9. Retirement Plan

The Organization has a contributory defined contribution plan covering eligible employees. The
Organization contributed $71,766 and $61,028 for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018.
respectively.

10. Medical Malpractice

The Organization Is protected from medical malpractice risk as an FQHC under the Federal Tort
Claims Act (FTCA). The Organization has additional medical maipracllce Insurance, on a claims-
made basis, for coverage outside the scope of the protection of the FTCA. As of September 3D,
2019, there were no known malpractice claims outstanding which, in the opinion of management;
will be settled for amounts in excess of both FTCA and medical malpractice insurance coverage,
nor are there any unassorted claims, or incidents which require loss accrual. The Organization
intends to renew medical malpractice insurance coverage on a claims-made basis and anticipates
that such coverage will be available.
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HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER. INC.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended September 30,2019 .

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through
Grantor/Program Title

United States Department of Health and Human Services

Dirsct

Health Center Program Cluster
Consolldaled Health Centers (Community Health Centers.
Migrant IHealth Centers, Health Care for the Homeless, and
Public Housing Primary Care)

Affordable Care Act (ACA) Grants for New and Expanded
Services Under the Health Center Program

Total Health Center Program Cluster

PasS'Thmuah

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Senrices
Preventive Health and Health Sendees Block Grant Funded

Solely with Prevention and Public Health Funds (PPHF)
Cancer Prevention and Control Programs for State, Territorial
and Tribal Organizations
Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant to the States

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc.
Cooperative Agreement to Support Navigators in Federally-
facilitated and State Partnership Marketplaces

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

Federal CFDA

Number .

93.224

93.527

93.76$

93.698

93.994

93.332

Pass>Through
Contract

Number

102-500731/90072003

102-500731/90080081

102-500731/90080000

1NAVA150228-02-00

Total

Federal

Ext)endlture8

271,723

1,781.992

3,137

6.635

58,118

4.330

■ $ 1.854.212

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended September 30, 2019

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) are
reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost
principles contained In Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance),
wherein certain types of expenditures are not aliowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

2. De Minlmis indirect Cost Rate

HeaithFlrst Family Care Center. Inc. (the Organization) has elected hot to use the 10-percent de
minimis Indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

3. Basis of Presentation

The Schedule includes the federal grant activity of the Organization. The information in this
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Because
the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Organization, It is not
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of
the Organization.
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BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

HealthFirst Family Care Center. Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards Issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of HealthFirst Family Care Center, Inc. (the
Organization), which comprise the balance sheet as of September 30. 2019. and the related
Statements of operations and changes in net assets, functional expenses and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated January 28, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization's
Internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the finaricial statements,
but not for the purpose pf expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's Internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's Internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees. In the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, In internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency Is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies. In internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of Internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies In internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies In Internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been Identified.
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Board of Dirwtors

HealthFirst Family Care Center, inc.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness , of the
Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an Integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Portland, Maine
January 28, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR THE MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors
HealthFlrst Family Care Center, Inc.

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program

We have audited HealthFlrst Family Care Center, Inc.'s (the Organization) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on Its major federal program for the year ended September 30, 2019. The
Organization's major federal program Is Identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of Its federal awards applicable to Its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the Organization's major federal program
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.. We conducted our audit
of compliance in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards; the standards applicable
to financial audits contained In Government Auditing Standards. Issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,' and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompllance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit Includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Organization's compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary In the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Organization's
compliance,

Opinion on the M^or Federal Program

In our opinion, HealthFlrst Family Care Center, Inc. complied, in ail material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major
federal program for the year ended September 30,2019.

Moinc • New Hampshire • Massachusetts • Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizona

bcrrydunrt.com



Board of Directors
HealthFlrst Family Care Center. Inc.

Other Metiers

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance which are required to be
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described In the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2019-001. Our opinion on the major federal program
is not modified with respect to this matter.

The Organization's response to the noncompliance finding Identified in our audit is described In the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Organization's response was not
subjected to the auditing procedures applied In the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Organization is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above, in planning and
performing our audit, we considered the Organization's internal control over compliance with the types
of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the major federal program to determine
the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on compliance for the major federal program and to test and report on Internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over comp//ance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there Is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a. deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness In internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described In the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over

. compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore,"material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we, consider to be material weaknesses. However,
we identified deficiencies In Internal control over compliance, as described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2019-001 and 2019-002, that we consider to be
significant deficiencies.
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Board of Directors

HealthFirist Family Care Center, Inc. ,

The Organization's response to the Internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit is
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Organization's
response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied In the audit of compliance and.
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

the purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Portland, Maine
January 28, 2020
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HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended September 30, 2019

1. Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report Issued:'

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakn6ss(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not

considered to be material weakness(es)?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(6s) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not

considered to be material weakness(es)?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Any audit findings dlsclosed.lhat are required to be reported
in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Health Center Program Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and
Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

2. Financial Statement Findings

None

Unmodified

□ Yes 0 . No

□ Yes 0 None reported

□ Yes 0 No

□  Yes 0 - No

0  Yes □ None reported

Unmodified

0 Yes □ No

$750,000

0 Yes □ No
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HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)

Year Ended September 30, 2019

3. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding Number: 2019-001

•Information on the

Federal Program:

Criteria;

Condition Found

and Context:

Cause and Effect:

Questioned Costs:

Repeat Finding;

Recommendation:

Views of a Responsible
Official and Corrective

Action Plan:

Program Name: Health Center Program Cluster (CFDA numbers 93.224
and 93.527)

Grant Award: 5 H80CS00295-17 from March 1, 2018 through
February 28. 2019 and 5 H80CS00295-18 from March 1, 2019
through February 29. 2020

Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Health Resources and Services Administration

Pass-Through Entity: n/a

In accordance with 42 USC 254(k)(3)(F). as an FQHC. the Organization
. must prepare and apply a sliding fee discount schedule so that the
amounts owed for the Organization's services by eligible patients are
adjusted (discounted) based on the patient's ability to pay.

The Organization has not applied sliding fee discounts to patient charges ■
consistent with its sliding fee discount schedule. While testing the
application of the Organization's sliding fee policy to 25 Individual patient
balances, we noted the sliding fee discount applied was not consistent
with the Organization's sliding fee discount policy for two patients. The
total difference between the discount and the policy was less than 1% of,
the sample tested. ' .

The errors were a result of the patient responsibility under the
Organization's sliding fee discount program that was entered Into the
patients' records in the billing system not agreeing with-the approved
sliding fee discount applications and contract with the two patients due to
a deficiency in monitoring procedures. The errors resulted in incorrect
sliding fee discounts which resulted In patients paying less than required
under the Organization sliding fee discount policy.

None

Yes (2018-001)

We continue to recommend management develop and Improve current
monitoring processes for the sliding fee discount program to Include
independent verification of the discount calculation. .

Management agrees with the finding. Timely documented reviews of
sliding fee scale adjustments will be completed to ensure compliance with
the Organization's sliding fee discount policy.
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HEALTHFIRST FAMILY CARE CENTER. INC.

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Concluded)

Year Ended September 30, 2019

3. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding Number: .2019-002

informatlon on the

Federal Program:

Criteria:

Condition Found

and Context:

Cause and Effect:

Questioned Costs:

Repeal Finding:

Recommendation:

Views of a Responsible
Official and Corrective
Action Plan:

Program Name: Health Center Program Cluster (CFDA numbers 93.224
and93.527)

Grant Award: 5 H80CS00295-17from March 1. 2018 through
Februaiy 28, 2019 and 5 H80CS00295-18 from March 1. 2019
through February 29, 2020

Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Health Resources and Services Administration

Pass-Through Entity: n/a

In accordance with 2 CFR § 180, Non-Federal entities are prohibited from
contracting with parties that are suspended or debarred for the
procurement of goods and services that are expected to equal or exceed
$25,000.

The results of our testing of cash disbursement transactions identified the
Organization did not perform procedures to verify that vendors were not
debarred, suspended, or othenvise excluded. There were a total of 11
vendors with contracted amounts in excess of $25,000 during 2019.

The Organization does not have formal written procedures to verify that
vendors are not debarred, suspended, or. otherwise excluded. If the
Organization were to enter into a contract with an excluded vendor, any
costs charged to the grant related to the contract would not be allowable
and could result in questioned costs and loss of grant revenue.

None

No .

We recommend management develop procedures to verify that vendors
are not debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded. This verification
would be accomplished by checking the vendor against the Excluded
Parties List System maintained by the General Services Administration at
sam.gov.

Management agrees with the finding. Formal policies and procedures will
be established to monitor the suspension and debanment compliance
requirement.
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HEALTHFiRST FAMILY CARE CENTER, INC.

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings and Questions Costs

Year Ended September 30,2018

Finding Number:

Information on the

FederalProgram:

•  Prior Year Criteria:

Prior Year Condition:

Recommendation:

Status:

2018-001

Program Name: Health Centers Cluster (CFDA numbers 93.224
and 93.527)

Grant Award: 5 H80CS00295-15 from March 1, 2016 through
February 28, 2017 and 5 H80CS00295-16 from March 1. 2017 through
February 28, 2018

Agency: Health Resources and Services Administration
Pass-Through Entity: n/a

In accordance with 42 USC 254{k)(3)(F). as an FQHC, the Organization
must prepare and apply a sliding fee discount schedule so that the
amounts owed for the Organization's sen/ices by eligible patients are
adjusted (discounted) based oh the patient's ability to pay"

The Organization has not applied sliding fee discounts to patient charges
consistent with its sliding fee discount schedule.

We continue to recommend management develop and improve current
monitoring processes for the sliding fee discount program and. to stress
the importance of the elimination of old sliding fee discount schedules
once a new schedule has been approved.

Partially resolved - see finding 2019-001.
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HEALTH FIRST FAMILy CARE CENTER, INC.
Board of Birders Listing

ressres82mi

Bums

Donovan

Everett

Lennon

Loud

Lunt

Merriman

Purdow

[cnreigCutrent^T^li^ExptfB^

Community 144 Woodridge Road, mwoodndge
Representative Franklin, NH 03235 Road FranWin NH 03235 603.203.7727 Jijn2015
Agency 80 Highland Street
.Representative Laconia.NH 03246 80 Highland Street Laconia NH 03246 603.524.3211 Mar2017
orient

Representative 290 S. Main St. Apt 9 Franklin NH 03235 603.496.0190 Ocl2019

Community . 10 Palmer Road.
Representative Campton, NH 03223 10 Palmer Road Campion NH 03223 603.960.2128 Jun2015
Cneril

Representative (603)707-9758 Jan 2019
Agency
Representative 53KendaiS Franklin NH 03235 (603)934-340C Mar2018
Oient AptS.NorthfiekJ.NH lODeartiom
Representative 03276 Road.^ApLS NorthfieW NH 03i276 603.998.2840 Mar2017
Community 714 Shore Drive,

VWSam Secretary/Treasu Representative Lacoriia, NH 03246 714 Shore Drive laconia NH 03246 603.528.5503 Jun 2014
Client

St Jacques. Sr. Robert -Director Representative 603.455.6556 Jun 2017
Client 111 New Chester

Stanley Michael. Vice Chair Representative. Roaid.HiB.NH 03243 .P.O.Box213. HHI NH- 03243.603.934.2531 Jul2012
Client 99 Monroe Street

Wells James Chair Representative Franklin, NH 03235 99 Monroe Street FrankTm NH 03235 603.470.9663 Mar 2005
Agency 18 Wheeler Road,

Wnuk Susan Director Representative Bow, NH 03304

Scott Director

Kevin Dir^r

Myla Director

Michelle Director

Renee Director

Susan Director

Christine Director

P.O. Box 1016 Concord NH 03302 603.225.3295 > Mar 2009

2  Jun 2018 to 2021 Jun 2021

1  Mar 2017 to 2020 Mar 2020

3  Oct2019to2022 Oct2022

2  Jun2018to2021 Jun2021

3  Jan 2019 to 2022 Jan 2022

1  Mar 2018 to 2021 Mar 2021

1  Mar 2017 to 2020 Mar 2020

2  Jun 2018 to 2021 Jun 2021

3  Jun 2017 to 2020 Jun 2020

2  Jul 2019 to 2021 Jul2021

3  Mar 2017 to 2020 Mar 2020

3  Mar2018to2021 M3r2021
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Russell Ca. Keene

Lee, NH
RussellGKeene@gmail.com 1 (603) 723-4771

A visionary. Innovative, out of the box thinker who leads by example. A calming presence. Influential,
motivator, consensus builder, and results orientated.

President, Chief Executive Officer
HealthFirst Family Care Center, Inc. | Franklin, NH | 09-2019 - Present

•  Leads the Board of Directors, Senior Management and community partners to create a shared vision of
strategic goals for organizational improvement and growth, scope and quality of programs and services,
resource development and allocation, and measurable impact on health status for targeted and
community population groups.

•  Proactively educates elected officials at the federal, state and local levels on issues that Impact the
. mission of HealthFirst. Identifies areas for possible expansions and ways that the HealthFirst can better
achieve its mission. ^

• Works strategically with the Chief Medical Officer (CMC) to develop and grow the medical services and
position HealthFirst as a PCMH.

•  Sets strategic direction for agency's short and long-term financial growth.
•  Oversees, mentors and develops the Board of Directors, CFO and Staff in implementation of annual

fundraising plan and Grant development and fundraising skills. Develops substantial collaborative
relationships with other organizations that can support the HealthFirst strategic goals.

• Oversees and mentors the Practice manager and Quality Coordinator on quality improvement and
compliance;and marketing. Monitors effective organizational performance as it relates to all local. State,
and Federal lav/s and regulations.

o Works strategically with the Human Resources (HR) Director to: create an agency culture that Is centered
on customer service, ensure that HealthFirst's most valuable asset is effectively used and supported and
that all applicable \aws and regulations are followed. Leads change management strategies and
manages organizational change. Builds an effective and powerful management team; develops and
leads the management team's growth and development.

Executive Manager State Opiold Response
Department of Health and Human ServicesI Concord. NH | 01-15-19 - Present

•  Provides strategic leadership and planning, programmatic oversight and operational direction for
Federal and State funded initiatives (46m grant) aimed at addressing the opiold crisis. Acts as official
representative of the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) with internal and external
stakeholders and key State leadership to identify opportunities and strategies for statewide coordination
of opiold efforts that meet the State's long-range goals and priorities.

•  Reviews, develops and implements current and future-funded CUD initiatives.
•  Oversees and directs coordination among varied and multiple sources of Federal and State funds.
•  Develops and maintains strong working relationships with executive-level leadership and agencies for

the state but not limited to the Governor's Office, Attorney General, Department Commissioners, and
key legislative leadership for the purpose of informing a statevwde program operations as the primary
agency representatives.

•  Leads, directs and supports collaboration w/ith DHHS Divisions.
.• Serves as the Commissioner's designee with other State agencies seeking to access Federal or State

funds.

'  • Oversees the development of performance measures and measures of success for OUD services.
• Advises and consults with staff on processes for grant applications, requests for proposals and

contracting related to OUD services.
•  Directs and monitors the collection and reporting of data and information related to SOR-funded^

initiatives * to SAMHSA.



Presidont,-Chief Financial Officer
^ North Country Healthcare | Berlin. NH 112-31-15-12-31-17

•  Dynamic results-orientad problem solver; driving force and visionary behind the effort to design and Implement an
Innovative multi-hospital system In rural Northern New Hampshire. Increasing patient access to comprehensive care
with state of the art technology while saving multiple organizations millions. Established financial improvement plan
and delivered positive operating margins at each institution.

■  Business strategist; assisted in the development of a successful Accountable Care Organization (ACO) that
achieved Medicare Shared Sayings.This prepared the system for risk-based contracting.

■  Regulatory knowledge; merged two large Home Health Agencies as authorized by State Attorney Gerieral.
■  Advanced senior leadership management; successfully managed senior leaders to achieve strategic planning

objectives. Developed a consensus as to strategic objectives and the associated tactical goals.
■  Versatile team member; innate ability to adapt to any situation and contribute at any level. Distinct ability to lead,

drive and hold team memljers accountable while facilitating an environment of teamwork, and continuous
Improvemenf.

■ - Operations Management; diverse skill set with detailed understanding of HealthCare Operations and 22 years of
experience

■  Customer focused; participated in the development of new regional access for patients. Worked with the senior
medical staff to develop a new call center to assist patients.

■  Articulate, confident speaker; comfortable presenting to groups of any size. Possess the ability to delineate
complex ideas to wide audiences and faciiitate.indusive discussions.

■  Natural Leader; Confident leading by example and possess strong skills In forging partnerships through trust and
experience.

«  Visionary behind North Country Healthcare, a $7 Million savings in 18 months; in rural New Hampshire,
providing quality healthcare locally had become an extreme challenge over the last two decades. Attracting the best
talent was equally challenging and having access to state of the art technology was fiscally impossible. A vision was
developed to shape rural New Hampshire's healthcare for decades to come by allowing the four major-hospitals in
this distinct area to share resources, increase the buying and negotiating power of the organizations, and providing
affordable best in class healthcare locally that can be sustained in the future. This success was the culmination of a
two-year process and included convincing 4 previously competitive service areas to join forces in order to meet the-
challenges of a fluid healthcare environment. In addition, worked tirelessly with regulations to receive approval for the
system to move forward.

•  Participated in the development of a Regional Accountable Care Organization (ACO) that has created a decrease In
costs of over $5M. This effort was successful due to the collaborative effort of each institution and concurrently
mobilizing the medical 8taff(s) to understand common goals. .

• Worked with State Legislative Branch to gain support for regulatory reimbursement enhancement.Thls effort entailed
working with various legislators to clearly define further, the merits of our request. The result was ultimate
stabilization of our Obstetrics Birthing (OB) programs in the North Country.

■  Re-aligned Home Health operation to eliminate a $1.3M loss and achieve break-even status by hiring new leadership,
Instituting new cost controls, and, accelerating marketing efforts.

President; Chief Executive Officer
Androscoggin Valley Hospital [ Berlin, NH | 06-01-02 - 12-31-15

•  Experienced Executive; 13-*- years of experience as Chief Executive Officer. Created financial stability in a highly
challenging environment as the county we serviced Is the most economically challenged and concurrently the sickest
region in the entire state.

•  Leadership exemplified through relationships and communication; bridged critical access hospitals. This
designation was an essential element of sustainability as the economic effect was over $10M annually.

■  Diverse operational knowledge; broad understanding of all hospital operations. Oversaw three separate Bond
issues and the conversion of a Defined Benefit Plan to a Defined Contribution Plan. Bond Issues are essential for
fadlily improvements. Received an A- rating from Standard's Poors reflecting the collaborative networks which led to
better healthcare for patients while also having a significant residual impact on recruiting top specialists.

■  Proponent of culture; understand the Importance of culture and adapting organizational goals and objectives.
Worked to create commonality among the 500 employees.

»  Customer focused; Partnered with tertiary facilities tO" expand clinical offerings allow patients access to care
previously only accessible hours away. Successful in building new specialty lines to meet the .demands and drive new
revenue.

■  Confident decision maker; comfortable making tough decisions based on experience and data. A broad
understanding of HealthCare environment provides the ability to make decisions quickly and confidently. Ability to
balance multiple, complex Issues simultaneously.

■  Influential personality; adept at building consensus. Influential and persuasive. Worked to establish a relationship



with Legislative Branch that realized success v^th "special" programs for Androscoggin Valley Hospital.
Community Involvement; In addition to strong leadership within the organization, also active In community^
endeavors. Elected to School Board and led the effort to examine budget and curriculum more closely.

-  Successfully converted to Critical Access Hospital resulting In revenue enhancement of over $10M. Taking advantage
of this special designation required convincing the Board, Medical Staff, and community that It would not result in
reduced services. . ̂  i., • *

•  Achieved A- rating from Standard and Poors. This rating was indicative of the rating agencies favorable view of our
fiscal integrity. By virtue of this positive rating. It benefitted the hospital in receiving lower Interest rates. ^

•  Delivered positive optimal margins In a consistent manner.This was accomplished irrespective of AVH having one ofthe most difficult patient mixes In the State of NH (I.e.. over 65% Medicare and Medlcald).
■  Achieved significant facility upgrades through the Facility Master Plan. This effort was augmented by a capital

campaign In the community. ^ ,
■  Saved over $10M In theconverslon of Defined Benefit Plan.The savings were realized by taking advantage of

Medicare reimbursement which subsidized the shortfall. I.e., the unfunded liability.

Vice President, Financial Services (CFO)
Androscoggin Valley Hospital | Berlin. NH | 03-15-95 - 05-30-02

Responsible for the financial systems of the institution. Filed all governmental reports as needed. Oversight of
the following departments.

Information Technology ^ -
Purchasing
Patient Fiscal Services (billing)
Credit
Patient Access (registration)



, Tasks: Financial management analysis; budget preparation and asset/liability review; accounts payable, accounts
receivable, and payroll oversight; Inventory and materials management oversight; procurement analysis, contract
performance verification. Profit/cost determination, analysis of fund expenditures, recommend contracts.

f\/lember of the Senior Management Team.

Chief Financial Officer

Isaacson Structural Steel, lnc.| Berlin, NH 11983 - 1995

MBA, Plymouth State University, (Plymouth. NH), 1988

Bachelor of Science In Accounting, Park College (Parkville, Mo), 1982

Military
Served 4 years in the United States Air Force. 1978 - 1982

Citizenship

USA Citizen-



Curriculum Vitae

Name: Eleanor A. (Nora) Janeway, M.D., M.Ed.
Address: 10 '/i William St., Cambridge and Washington, Sullivan Co., NH
Phone:617-913-7735

Email: noraJaneway@hms.harvard.cdu

Education:

1983 B.A. Yale University, New Haven, CT
1986 M.Ed. Lesley College, Cambridge, MA
1993 M.D. UniversityofCalifomia San Francisco School of Medicine

Postdoctoral Training, Residency:
1993-1996 Resident, Cambridge Hospital, Cambridge, MA
1996-1997 Chief Resident, Cambridge Hospital, Cambridge, MA

Primary-Care Internist, Community Health Centers, Cambridge
1994-1995 . Internist, shelter for homeless patients with substance-use disorders
1994-2018 Windsor St. Health Center, immigrant and low-income patients
2018-present Medical Director, HealthPirst Family Care. Center, Inc.

Hospital Appointments:
1996-present Attending Physician, Cambridge Health Alliance

Academic Appointments:
1993-1996 Clinical Fellow in Medicine, Harvard Medical School
1996-present Clinical Instructor in Medicine, Harvard Medical School

• Teaching, Supervisory and other work experience:
1985-1987 Classroom Teacher, Boston Public Schools, Grades 7/8
1987-1988 Worked in methadone program and as Hospice CNA
1996-present Taught and supervised Internal Medicine Residents
2004-2017 Taught Harvard Medical Students in clinical medicine
2015-present Clinical site director, CHA Residency Program, Windsor St.

Licensure, Certification and membership:
08/20/17-08/20/19 Massachusetts Medical License Registration

- 04/13/16-04/13/26 American Board of Internal Medicine Recertification

08/24/17 enrolled, American Society of Addiction Medicine certification program
10/12/2017 Buprenorphine waiver for treatment of opioid addiction

Languages spoken:
Spanish, Bengali, Hindi.

Clinical Interests:



Care of patients with chronic psychiatric illness and dual-diagnosis patients,
Addiction Medicine, primary care in medically-underserved areas.



Elizabeth KantowskI

Health FIret Family Gare Center
Mareh 2002 -Present • Administrative Services/Human Resources Manager

Staff recruttment; l>enof}t onroDment: advise staff on pereonnel Isoubo; physician
cradent'alino; prepare supporting grant application ai>d report documorits; administer the
School Based Oral Health Prograrn; coordinate administrative support to executive director
artd staff of two non-profit organizations; attend Board of Director moetlngs and rooord
minutos; supervision of one staff member.

MacNelil Worldwtda* Inc.. ISO 8001 - October 1996 to November 2001
HurncrT Resources Manager

Responsible for staffing reeruitmont and selection; advising staff of human resouroe policies
and etato and federal empioyment laws; creating and conducting new staff orientation;
conducting and arranging staff training: managing dopartmont budget; nionthly staffing
reports; payroll and t>onef7t programs; worker epmpor^satlon; conflict resolution; safety
committee member: staff morale programs; scii^rvision of one staff member.

NIckeroon Assembly - Septornber 1994 to August 1996
Human Resources Manager/Admliilstratlve Assistant te President -

Staffing rocrultmorttand selection; payroll preparation; ISO Implementation team; t>ensftts
administration, safety committee ohatr; newsletter editor; administered and Interpreted the
Benzlnger Thinking Styles Assessment, supervision of one staff member.

Sunny Knoll Retirement Homo - May 1993 to February 1994
Office Manager

Responsible for accounts payable, receivable arid payroll; Home administrator on a rotating
basis for off.hours and weokonds.

HomsBenk - December 1891 to May 1993
Administrative Assistant to Assets Manager — Bank closed by RTC

Calhottc Medical Centar - September 1991 to December 1991
Per Dibm Human Reoourceo Assistant

Education/trainlngfMembershlp
•  hiotro Demo College — 126 credits
•  Human Resources Internship - Catholic Medical Center
• Dynamic Leadership — Effeqtlvo Personol Prpductjylty
• Date Carnegie—Public Speaking arid Human Relations
•  9ooloty for Hiirnan^Resouroes Management
• Certified Human Resource Professional, 2000-2004

References will be provided upon request

HcalthFirst Family Care Center, Inc. RFP-2018-DPHS-15-PRIMA 31



Ted Bolognani

Profenional Summary

•  Solid background in senior management with strong emphasis In finance, budget, financial planning & forecasting,
GL ftind accounting, audit, benefit & risk insurance and technology implementation.

•  Proven record of building strong operational & financial support systems for tuition based academic programs and
federally funded grant programs.

•  Strong knowledge of federal rules & regulations including 0MB circulars, CDC, USAID and FAR & FASB
compliance issues as well as A*133 audit requirements.

•  Skilled in developing and implementing standardized operating policies and procedures for all aspects of
administration, accounting, grants & sub-awarding as well as overseas financial operations.

•  Over 10 years experience working Intematiohaliy In Africa, Asia & Eastern Europe.

Expcrieuce
Health First Family Care Center & Caring Community Network of Twin Rivers (CCNTR)
Job Title: Chief Financial Omcer 2011 • Present

•  Responsibility for the integrity of the finartcisl records and monitoring the daily business operations; duties include
maintenance of the general ledger, accounts payable, accounts receivable, payroll and fixed assets.

•  Prepare trial balance and financial statements and reports to the Board of Directors on the financial condition of the
Center.

•  Provide financial analysis data to CEO and monitors (he annual budget and grants. The CFO tracks, bills and
• prepares the financial reporting on each of the grants.

•  Develop policy 8l procedures for improving grant management & accounting operations.

World Learning 2008-2011
Job Title: Director of Finance

•  Direct a team of analyst; lead organization wide process such as budget development (S120M annual, $60M federal
grant), financial planning, quantitative analysis, multi-year forecasting and business & reporting systems.

•  Develop policy & procedures for improving company administrative & accounting operations and international
project management.

• Manage treasury operations, international banking, foreign exchattge hedging and investment portfolio.
•  Oversight on federal indirect cost control issues, granting & contr^ting processes and project compliance.
•  Liaise with Board & business partners on investment, budget and reporting.
• Manage Implementation of process improvements and tech systems include budget & reporting software, field

accounting, HR & payroll information systems and web based technology for management data.



Tb« Americao Yoath Foundation

Job Title: Director of Finance 2005-2008

•  Directed the student registrar office, accounting, human resources, audit, risk insurance and administrative
functions for 3 locations (MO, MF & NH).

•  Directed the Information technology (IT) services for company's 3 office network, including InstellaUon of
new email and comrnunicatlon systems and moving financial systems to web platform & Citrix desktop.

«• As senior management, participated in strategic planning, policy formation and major decision making with
CEO & Board of Directors.

•  Served foundations Board on all financial, audit & investment matters.

Institute for Sustainable Communities 2003-2005

Job Title: Director of Finance & International Operations

•  Directed administration, HR, finance & business services for headquarters and 10 country offices.
•  Managed A-133 audits and responsible (o insure USAID & 0MB rules/regulation compliance on projects.
'• Developed and implemented cost allocation plans, policies and procedures for overseas operations insuring

approval of USAID indirect cost rate (NICRA).
•  Directed International finance staff In countiy offices to insure compliance on USAID sub-award programs.
•  Implemented a new ERP & accounting system for headquarters and provided overseas training
•  Lead financial person for agency, presented financial statements to Board, audit committee & donors.

Global Health Council 1998-2003

Job Title: Finance Director

•  Directed agency functions & policy for facilities, accounting, human resources & information technology.
•  Direct^ grant & contract reporting & compliance on federal & privately funded projects and programs.

Developed agencies first indirect cost allocation plan and negotiated Indirect cost rate with USAID.
•  Implemented new fund accounting package (Blackbaud):
•  Directly managed employee benefit programs, including 403(b) pension, health, dental & life insurances.
•  Provided oversight on hiring & firing decisions, payroll and employee evaluations, pay-raise & merit award

system and welfare matters.
•  Oversaw development and directed agencies IT systems & Nveb-site Implemenlation, Includes VOIP system

using dedicated PTP, administer the VPN frame relay, provided direct PC & LAN/WAN hardware support
for WinNT/2000 servers, MS BackOffice & Exchange Server.

Southeastern Vermont Community Action 1993 - 1998
Job Title: Director of Finance

•  Directed all administrative, personnel. IT & financial management functions.
«  Primary liaison to Board of Directors, flmders and public donors on financial matters.

•' Directed agency accounting, grant reporting. Medlcaid & Medicare billing, and federal & state compliance
program.

«  Directed grant reporting & compliance on federal, state & privately funded projects end programs.
• Managed HR systemis, employee benefits, insurance and 403(b) pension plan.

CARE, Internatiooal Development Agency 1988-1993
Job Title: Deputy Country Dli^ctor, Admlnlstratloa and Finance - Uganda

•  Directed HR, IT and accounting/financial fimctions for country-wide operations. Took lead In agency
planning and mqjor grant, contract & business negotiations

29



•  Directed grant reporting & compliance on federal, state & privately funded projects.
•  Developed training programs In HR, procurement, inventory control, planning &. budgeting to comply with

federal funding requirements.

Job Title: CoDtroller CAEIE Emergency KiWtl Office lo Mogadishu • Somalia
•  Supervise Accounting. HR and IT systems & Administrative stalT for relief operations in 4 mqjor refugee

camps throughout Somalia.
•  Prepared and audited monthly financial documents for reporting to headquarter on an annual budget of US

78.9 million. Managed all balance sheet & income statement accounts

Education:

•  Masters of International Administration, World Learning's School for International Training
•  B.S. Business Administration, University of Vermont



HealthFirst
Famtly Care Center inc.

Stacey Benoit
PROFESSIONAL SinVfMARY

Dedicated Practice Manager for 24 years combining experience m management and patient service experience in the-
healthcare setting. 1 am driven by providing exceptional service to patients and their families.

SKILLS
• Active Listening
o  Judgement and Decision Making
•  Social Perceptiveness
• Critical Thirddhg
•  Service Orientation ' .
• Learning Strategies
•  Financial Management
• Coordination.
. • Troubleshootbg'
• Communication.
e Project Management

EXPERIENCE
Practice Manager HealthFirst Family Care Center Oct. 2017- current

• Coordinate and facilitate team and provider meetings, and special events.
o Compose, type and distribute meeting notes, routine correspondence, reports, such as presentations, statistical or

monthly reports. .r,, .
• Review work to ensure quality material and information is in place and that company policies are followed.
• Manage projects as determined by the CEO.
• Develop training and onboarding tools to assist staff with meeting performance expectations.
e . Maintain provider schedules and ensure productivity goals are met. Discuss issues or ideas with CEO.
(Stacey Benoit resume cont'd.)
• Recruit, hire and onboard newadministrativc staffas needed.
o Ensure customer service standards are met and address customer complaints promptly.
« Attend monthly management team meetings.

Practice Manager Concord Ortbopaedlci Jen* 19^4 - Oct.,2017
•  Perform payroll ftinctions, such as maintaining timekeeping Information and processing and submitting payroll.
• Recruit, hire and onboard staff for clinical, patient services, radiology and leadership positions.
e  Project Manager for the Patient Experience Committee, includes rnarkcting efforts for new services lines.
• Use various computer applications, such as Microsoft programs, PowerPoint, Word & Excel, electronic health

records and practice management software.
•  Set up and manage paper and electronic filing systems, updating paperwork, or maintaining documents, such as

credentialing. buisiness associate agreements end other correspondences.

HealthFirst Family Care Center, Inc. RFP-2018-DPHS-lS-PRIMA 29



• Operate office equipment, such as fax machines, copiers and phone systems and arrange for repairs and
upgrades as needed:

• Maintain and oversee schedules for 39 Providers. Ensuring patients have appropriate access to care.
• Responsible for efficient and cost effective planning of all patient care, clinical and radiology staff.
• Coordinate and facilitate team meetings, and special events, such as "luncheon learns".
• Compose, type and distribute meeting notes, routine correspondence, reports, such as presentations, statistical or

monthly reports.
•  Review work to ensure quality material is in place and that company policies are fpllowed.
• Manage projects as determined by the Practice Administrator or CEO.
• Work with Leadership to develop training and onboarding tools to assist staff with meeting performance

expectations.
• Oversee and ensure corporate compliance with Meaningful Use and Clinical Quality Compliance programs.

Chiropractic Assistant Interlakes Chiropractic Center June 1991-Dec 1994
•  Answer telephones and give information to callers, take messages, or transfer calls to appropriate individuals.
• Collect co-payments and enter money into accounts, daily balancing of funds collected, prepare bank deposits.
• Assist patients with financial counseling process N^en appropriate.
• Create, maintain, and entered patient demographics and insurance information into databases.
•  Set up and manage paper or electronic Cling systems, recording information, updating paperwork or

maintaining documents, such as patient progress notes, correspondence, or other material.
« Operate office equipment, such as fax machines, copiers and phones systems.
• Greet visitors or callers and handle their inquiries or direct them to the appropriate person for assistance.
• Maintain physician's sch^ules.
•  Schedule and coriftrm appointments for patients. '
• Make copies of correspondence or other printed material.
• Maintain patient health record information according to office policy.
•  Prepare patients for their appointment with the physician, such as, collect chief complaint, change attire, apply

mo^lities^Bs appropriate.
•  Provided patient education material as directed by the physician.
•. Other duties as assigned.

EDUCATION

Associates of Applied Science: Business Management June 1991
Lakes Region Community College ■ Laconla, NH

HeallhFirst Family Care Center, Inc. RFP-2018-DPHS-15-PRIMA '30



HealthFirst Family Care Center, Inc.

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Russell Keene CEO $175,011 0% $0.00

Dr. Nora Janeway Medical Director $159,994 0% $0.00

Ted BolognanI CFO $130,000 0% $0.00



AGREEMENT BETWEEN

THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEAPRTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES,
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH

AND

MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER

This Agreement dated this Ao day of April 2020 is entered into by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health ("DPH"), and
Mid-State Health Center, having their principal office at 101 Boulder Point Drive, Plymouth, NH
03264 hereafter, collectively, ("MSHC").

WHEREAS, consistent with the Govemor*s Executive Order 2020-04 as extended by
Executive Order 2020-05, DPH is working to respond to the giowing outbreak of COVID-
19;

WHEREAS, approximately 81,000 residents of New Hampshire are uninsured, many of
whom may need medical seivices to treat the signs and symptoms of COVID-19;

WHEREAS, uninsured individuals typically seek non-emergent care at hospitals, due to the
hospitals' capacity and ability to provide uncompensated care to the residents of NH,

WHEREAS, in preparation for the hospital surge expected as a result of the COVID-19
outbreak, DPH must manage the availability of hospital services available to all residents of
NH,

WHEREAS, MSHC is the owner and operator of a Fedeially Qualified Health Center (FQHC),
Planned Parenthood Clinic, or FQHC Look-a-Like;

WHEREAS, MSHC has the capacity to offer non-emergent services to uninsured individuals at
a discounted rate paid for by the Department of Health and Human Services; and

WHEREAS, by providing for the uninsured individuals to receive non-emergent care at these
walk-in center locations, DPH is better able to keep hospital services available for those
needing emergency care for the treatment of COVID-19;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained
herein, the parties agree;

1. Services to be provided:

A. MSHC shall provide telemedicine visits to individuals who are uninsured and reside
in New Hampshire to triage, screen, and treat the signs or symptoms of COVID-19 during the State



of Emergency in New Hampshire declared pursuant to Executive Order 2020-04, as extended by
Executive Order 2020-05.

Telemedicine visits provided by MSHC for individuals for issues unrelated to COVID-19 shali not
be included within the services to be rendered under the Agreement.

B. At tlie conclusion of a telemedicine visit with a MSHC healthcare provider in which
the provider has ordered a SARS-CoV-2 (virus that causes COVID-19) test, MSHC shall
coordinate the specimen collection, processing, coordination with a reference laboratory for
testing, and communication with the uninsured individual concerning the test result and
recommendations for fUrther treatment based on the test result.

C. MSHC shall commence the services upon signature of both parties,

2. Payment for Services:

A. For each telemedicine visit provided under this Agreement, DPH shall pay MSHC
$99.00.

B. DPH reserves the right to offset from any amounts otherwise payable to MSHC
under this Agreement those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

C. MSHC shall submit an invoice to DHHS by the fifteenth (15th) working day of the
following month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred
in the prior month. MSHC shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to DHHS in
order to initiate payment. The invoices shall include: name of patient seen and the date of service.

D. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed
to Mary.Calise@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Mary Calise
Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Seivices
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

F. The State shall make payment to MSHC within thirty (30) days of receipt of each
invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available.

3. Price Limitation:

A. The total to be paid or reimbursed under this Agreement from DPH to MSHC shall
not exceed $ 100,000.00. If the volume of uninsured individuals receiving care and/or testing
under this Agreement is high, DPH and MSHC may increase this limit upon mutual
agreement by the parties with appropriate approvals as required pursuant to the laws of the
State of New Hampshire for govenimcnt contracting.

X'



B. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations
of DPH hereunder, including, without (imitation, the continuance of payments hereunder,
are contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of fUnds affected by any
state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies
the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the scope of service.

4. Effective Date and Duration: The Term of this Agreement shall commence upon signature
from both parties and shall terminate on June 30, 2020, unless sooner terminated or extended in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

5. Indemnification: Unless otherwise exempted by law, MSHC shall indemnify and hold
harmless the State, its officers and employees, from and against any and all claims, liabilities and
costs for any personal injury or property damages, patent or copyright infringement, or other
claims asserted against the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of MSHC, or subcontractors, including but not limited
to negligent, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not be liable for any costs incurred
by MSHC arising under this paragraph. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein contained
shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign inimurtlty of the State, which immunity is
hereby reserved to the State. This covenant shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

6. Confidentiality: Any and all confidential infoimation obtained or received by MSHC
shall be kept confidential and shall not be disclosed to anyone for any reason. "Confidential
Information" means all information owned, managed, creat^, or receiv^ from the Individuals,
DPH. any other agency of the State, or any medical provider, that is protected by Federal or State
information security, privacy or confidentiality laws or rules. Confidential Information includes,
but is not limited to, Derivative Data, protected health information (PHI), pei*sonaUy identifiable
information (PII), federal tax infonnation (FTI), Social Security Administration information
(SSA) and criminal justice Information services (CJIS) and any other sensitive confidential
infonnation provided under the Agreement. This covenant shall survive the termination of the
Agreement.

7. Assignment: MSHC shall not assign any interest in this Agreement without prior written
notice, which shall be provided to DPH at least fifteen (15) days prior to the assignment, and a
written consent of DPH. For purposes of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger, consolidation, or a transaction or scries of
related transactions in which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the direct or indirect
owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined
voting power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the
Contractor.

8. Modification: No modification of this Agreement shall be binding upon the other Party
unless made in writing and agreed upon by both Parties to this Agieemcnt. Either Party may
terminate this Agreement for any reason or for no reason upon thirty (30) days written notice to
the other Party.



9. Seveiabllity: In the event that any provision of this Agreement shall be held by a court of
competent Jurisdiction to be invalid, Illegal or unenforceable, the validity, legality and
enfomeablllty of the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected and shall remain
in ftill force and affect.

10. Jurisdiction: Tlils Agreement shall be governed by, Interpreted and enforced under the laws
of the State of New Hampshire without making reference to Its conflicts of laws ox choice of laws
provisions. The Parties consetit to a slate court located in the state of New Hampshire as having
the sole jurisdiction of any and all controversies that may arise under this Agreement.

11. Bntire Agreement: This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding
between tl)e parties, and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings relating hereto.

DULY signed and authorized by:

Slate of New Hampshire, Department of MSH€
Health and Human Services, Division K S
of Public Health

Date Date



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of Stale of the State of New Hampahire, do hereby eertify that MID-STATE HEALTH
CENTER is a New Hatnpahire Nonprofit Corporation regiatered to tranaaet boaineaa in New Hampahtre on Januaty 09, 1998,
farther eertify that all feea and doeumenta required by the Seetetary of St.te'a office have been received and is ,n good stand,ng as
far as ihis office is concerned.

Business ID: 285492

Certifiane Number: 0004521839

y

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hcreio set my hand and cause lo be affixed

the Seal of ihe Siatc of New Hampshire.

Ibis 30th day of May A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of Stale



Mid-State
Health Center

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Timothy Nam President of the Board of Directors, do hereby certify that:

1. I am a duly elected Officer of Mid-State Health Center.

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted by a quorum of Mid-State Health Center Board of
Directors members via e-vote duly conducted on Uie fourth dav of March. 2020:

RESOLVED: That the Chief Executive Officer fCEO^ is hereby authorized on behalf of Mid-State Health
Center to enter into said contract with the State and to execute any and all documents,
agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto,
as they may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force arid effect as of the
fourth dav of March. 2020.

4. Robert MacLeod Is the Chief Executive Officer fCEOt of Mid-State Health Center.

(SignatuWof Board President Timothy Naro)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Grafton

The forgoing instrunient was acknowledged before me this fourth dav of March. 2020. by Board President
Timothv Naro.

//■f  n -
^ - ^ (Sfi^nature of Notary(Public Lyn England)* Mr • ^

-  : -f O^F^L) I

Commission Expires: 0 I

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operallons ^ ^
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Cettlflcate of Vote Without Seal



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
Pate:

09/26/19

Administrator:

New England Special Risks, Inc.
60 Prospect St.'
Sherborn, Ma. 01770
Phone: /508) 561-6111

Insured:

Mid-State Health Center

101 Boulder Point Dr.- Suite 1
Plymouth, NH. 03264

This certificate Is Issued as a matter oT jntormalion crly and confers
rw rights upon the certificate holdef. This certificate does not amend.

extend cr alter the coverage afforded bv the pofictes bdow.

INSURERS AFFORDING COVERAGE

Insurer A: IMedical Protective Insurance Co.
AIM Mutual Insurance Co.

Insurer C

Insurer D

-t1« insurance listed bdow hff« been Issu^ to

TYPE OF INSURANCE

General Liability

Ul Commerclaii Gi^erai Liabiilly
□ ClatmsMade 0 Occurrence
□
□

General Aooregate LWl AopUw Per:
0 Policy O Project Dt.cc

POLICY NUMBER

Automobile Liability

t~1 Any Auto
□ All Owned Autos
□ Scheduled Autcs
Q Hired Aulcs

□ -=
Garage Liability
0 Any Auto

a
Excess Liability

1 Occurrence 0Clalms Made

Fo'rkers Oomponsalion and
imptoverg' Llabltlty

$

B

Q Ooducllble
Retention

HN 030313

»olicy
Effectlvo

Doto -

IOn/2019

'ollcy
Expiration

Datfl-

LIMITS

Each Occurrence

iFIre Damage (Anyone fire)
iMed E>p (Anyoneperson)

10/1/2020 rpefaonalS Advlnjuty
General Aagregate
I

$

pf0ducts-Comp/Op Agg

[Cabined Sligle Limit
{(Each eccideni)
IBodiv injury (Per person)

Bodily Injury (Per accident)
I Property Damage
UPer accent)

I Auto Only-Ea. Accident

Other Than
Auto Onl

Ea. Acc

|Agg
I Each Occurrence

ECC-10000795018A

Entity Healthcare Professional and .
Employed Physicians Professional
Professional Liability

HN 030313

10/1/2019

10/1/2010

\^l\do\cr, in"
LImltfl I

Other

10/1/2020 E-l- Each Accident
E.L. Dsease-Ea. Employee

Ie.L. O'seaso • Pdicy Lltrdl
$
$

10/1/2020 IPerlnddent
lAggregato

i>,.cr ption ol o|«-»tlon.h.hlcl..<.xclu.l<.n8 addod by .ndo-^nonU.p.cl.l provisionE,^doncoolCurr»,tGmeral,Hoalir«oroM«llcalPro(.s.ionr-LWlyonc>Worte,oCo.Trponsollonlnsu,DncoCpve,o80fo,inolnoured.

1.000.00(
50.0001

s.oc

1.000.(
3.000.0C
1,000.0001

500.0001
500j?0^
500,000

si.oco.ooo
$3,000,000

Slate Of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant St.
Concord, NH. 03301

•ghoJid ol Ihe above pobes be canceled bdore (he expraiKXi oaie j'-"
Issuing insurer wO endeavor to mall 10 days wrillen n«lce to the certificale holdw

named to the left, but fdiure to do so shall Impose no obligation or liability of any Wndnprnila insurer. Hs agents or representatives.
Authorized Representative



AAID-STXTE
HEAtTH Center.

Where your care comes together.

Family, InttrnftI and Pedlatric Medicine • Dehovioral Health • Dental Care

midttfitoboalth.ofg

Mission Statement: Mid-State Health Center provides sound primary medical care to the
community, accessible to all regardless of the ability to pay.

I'lymoutJi Office: 101 Boulder Poiiit-Drlve • PH (603) 536-4000 • FAX (603) 536-4001
Bristol OfHcc: 100 Roble Rond • PH (603) 744-6200 • FAX (603)744-9024
MallluB Address: 101 Boulder Point Drive • Suite 1 • Plymouth, NH 03264
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'I VI.KK. SI.MMS& ST.SAUV'KUIi.CI'As, I'.C

(Vrlirntl riiliU<A«o"iirt»!«» U«Om->v{ iitMitlanit

Independent AuditorsVReport

To Ihc Hoanl or rnisiccs of
Mid-Slaic l lcallli Ccnicr and Subsidiar>':

Report on the Coiisolufatat HnaiicinI Statements

w. have audiicd ihc accompanying consolida.cd Pnancial sm.en.cus and

stalcmcals.

Mmu,i;cmcitrsKcsi,omUMtyfi>rn,cCo,mmalc,IFinm,aalS(ukma,ts

wlicihcr due lo fraud or error.

Aiiilitor^s ResponslhiUly

Sinles of America ana uic svanuuiu. 1 1 sinndarilR require dial svc plan

r'iSnirtitrr:^"—
arc Ircc from maieria! missialcincal.

An undii involves pcr.,nning
(he consolidalcd misstnicmcni of (he eonsolidaled nnnncini slatemenis,
inelnding the assessmcnl ol ,1,0 „ndi,or considers inlernal eonlrol
whellier due (o Irnud or ciroi. In ma n g ^ nrcscntation of Ihc consolidaicd nnancial slaiemonls

cvnUiatiny Ihc overall prcscnlalioi) of ihe consolidalcd naaacml slnicmcnls.

we believe Ural (he andil evide.ree we have obtained is snfT.cient and appropriate to provide a btrsis for
our nudil opinion.



Emphasis ofMatter

Changes in Accounting Principle

As discussed In Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, as of June 30, 2019, the Organization
adopted Accounting Standards (ASU) 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit
Entitles. The update addresses the complexity and understandability of net asset classification,
information about liquidity and availability of resources, methods used to allocate costs and.direction for
consistency about Information provided about expenses and investment return. The adoption of the
standard resulted In additional footnote disclosures and changes to the classification of net assets and
disclosures related to net assets. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Mid-State Health Center and Subsidiary as of June 30, 2019 and 2018,
and the results of their operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as required by Title 2 U.S.
Code ofFederal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the financial statements. The consolidating information is also presented on pages 30-33
for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of the Organization's management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, Including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

considering Ihe Organization's internal control over fmancial reporting and compliance.

Lebanon, New Hampshire
November 19,2019

.3



MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
AsofJune 30,2019 and 2018

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Patient accounts receivable, net
Estimated third-party settlements
Contracts and ̂ nts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other receivables

Total current assets

Long-term assets
Property and equipment, net
Other assets

Total long-term assets

Total assets

Liabilities and net assets

Current liabilities

Accounts payable .
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Accrued earned time

Current portion of long-term debt
Current portion of capital lease obligations

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities

Long-term debt, less current portion
Capital lease obligations, less current portion

Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (See Notes)

Net assets without donor restrictions

Total liabilities and net assets

2019 2018

$ 1,764,253 S 1,453,543
69.659 53,419
570,448 683,199
88,708 98,348

475,746 291,932
379.974 357.533

3.348,788 2.937.974

5,832,126 6,022.468
18.263 .

5.850.389 6.022.468

$ 9.199.177 - S 8.960.442

$ 204,907 $ 122,653
66,462 71,462

374,802 350,636
308,765 354,444
160,374 160,342

591 7.460

1.115,901 1,066.997

4,195,066 4,348,832
• •  791

4,195.066 4,349,623

5.310.967 5.416.620

3.888.210 3.543.822

S  9.199.177 $ 8.960.442

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an Integral part of these statements.



MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
For the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

Changes In net assets without restrictions
Revenue, gains and other support

Patient service revenue (net of contractual allowances
and discounts)

Provision for uncollectible accounts
Net patient service revenue

Contracts and grants
Contributions

Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restrictions

Total revenue, gains and other support

Expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Insurance

Professional fees
Supplies and expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Interest expense

Total.expenses

Change in net assets without donor restrictions
Changes in net assets with donor restrictions

Net assets released from restrictions
Change in net assets with donor restrictions

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

2019 201&

6,721,349 $  7,064,450
241,053 280.637

6.4S0,2i^6 d,VS3.8l5

2,464,156 2,260,034

.  13,987 13,903

1,834,609 1,308,807
-

11,958

10,793.048 10.378,515

6,115,133 6.490,478

1.378,376 1,469,123

33,090 137,116

939,846 563,056

1,472,424 1.348,770

306,383 297,293

203.408 203,415

10,448.660 10.509.i51

344,388 (130,736)

(11,958)
-

(1 1,958)

344.388 (142,694)

3.543.822 3.686.516

S  3,888.210 $  3.543.822

The accompanying notes to financial statements arc an integral part oflhcsc statements.
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MID-STATX HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended June 30,2019

Program Sqviccs

Medical Dental

Behavioral

Health

Emergency
Prep.'

Monlessori

Center

Total

Program
Service

Admin and

Genera] Fundraising
Total

Expenses

Salaries and wages S 3,573,331 $ 396,792 J 756,610 J 60.951 S 169,102 $ 4.956,786 S  1,138,041 $  20,307 S 6,115.134
Employee benefits 822,119 113,606 210.897 14.304 46,585 1,207.511 166.662 4.202 1,378.375
Insurance 14.794 288 1,909 4.000 977 21,968 11,123 33,09!
Professional fees 525,174 48,356 68,799 216,416 - 858,745 81,101 • 939,846
Supplies and exporses 1,099,113 120,679 93.303 9.755 12,712 1,335,562 136,861 1,472,423
Depreciation and amortization 233,417 42.663 19,599 - 1,758 297.437 8,946 306,383
Interest expense 164.255 17,982 12,787 . . 195,024 8,384 203,408

Total cj^enses S 6.432,203 S 740,366 S 1,163.904 S 305,426 $ 231.134 S 8,873,033 S  1,551,118 $  24.509 S 10.448,660

The accompanying notes to fuianciaJ statements are an integral part of these statements



MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSHHARY
Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended June 30,20 i 8

Salaries and w-agcs

Employee bcnefiis
Insurance

ProfcssionaJ fees

Supplies and expenses
Oeprcciaiion and amortization
Interest expense

Total expenses

Program Services

Dental

Behavioral

Health

Education

and

Outreach

3,989,689 S 433.697 $  756.546 S  149,122

924,393 120,726 210.233 36,570

113,359 984 -

■

214.588 19,579 26.438 ■

1,032.953 98,213 90,123 12,510

213,489 51,642 22,001 •

165.455 16.226 13,069 •

6,653.926 $ 741.067 $  1,118.410 S  198.202

Emergency

Prep.

Montessori

Center

Total

Program

Service

Supporting Services

Admin and

General Fondraising

60.620 S 157,192 $ 5.546.866 $ 926,864 S 16.748

13,617 39,948 1.345,487 120,036 3.600

1.002 115,345 21,771 •

233.623 494,228 60,298 •

7.732 8,523 1.250,054 98,716 •

1 746 288,878 8.415 •

194,750 17,195 •

" 315.592 S 208,411 $ 9.235.608 S 1,253,295 $ 20.348

Total

Expenses

$ ■ 6.490,478
1,469.123

137.116

554,526

1.348.770

297.293

211.945

$  10.509.251

The accompanying notes to financial statements arc an integral part of these statements
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDURY
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization reflected as interest

Provision for uncollectible accounts
(Increase) decrease' in the following assets;

Patient accounts receivable
Estimated third-party settlements
Contracts and grants receivable
Prepaid expenses and other receivables
Other assets

increase (decrease) in the following liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Accrued earned time

Accrued other expenses
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Payments on capital leases
Payments on long-term debt

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash, cash equivalents and
restricted cash

Cnsh, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning
ofyear

2019 2018

344,388 $ (142,694)

306,383 297,293
2,668. 2,667

241,053 280,637

(128,302) (294,199)
9,640 (1,685)

(183,814) 43,531 .
(22,441) 366,359
(18,263) -

82.254 25,157
24,166 21,907

(45.679) 11,178
(5.000) (258,431)

607,053 351,720

(116,041)
(116,041)

(7,660)
(156,402)
0 64,062)

326,950

1 ,506,962

(36,228)
(36,228)

(4,630)
(195,444)
(200,074)

115,418

1,391,544

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end ofycar

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash consisted of the following as of June 30:

2019

$

$  1,833,9

Cash and cash equivalents .764,2

12 $ 1,506,962

Restricted cash

53
69,659

2018

1,453,543
53,419

$  1,833,912 $ 1,506.962

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.



MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (continued)
For the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018 ■

ic;.inntemcntainisclnsuresofC»^h Flow Informaiion

■  2012 201S
Cashpaymentstor: $ 200 740 $ 200,748

Interest i

Simnlementfll Disclosures of Non-Cf^xh Transactlons

During 2018, the Organization entered into a capital lease agreement to acquire equipment
totaling $7,676.

The accompanying notes to financial statements arc an integral part of these statements.



MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies!

Organization '

MId-Siatc Health Center ("MSHC") Is a Federally Qualified Health Cenlcr.(FQHC) which provides health
care to a large number of Medicare, Medicaid and charity care patients on on outpatient basis. MSHC maintains
facilities in Plymouth and Bristol, New Hampshire.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Mid-State Community Development
Corporation (MSCDC), collectively, "the Organization".

EfTectivc September 23, 2010, the Organization was transferred a sole member interest in MSCDC, which
owns the 19,500 square foot operating facility that was developed to house the Organization, providing medical
services to the underserved community in the Plymouth, New Hampshire region.

During the year ended June 30, 2012, after having participated in a pilot program with the New Hampshire
Citizens Health Initiative (NHCHl), the Organization was ofilcially recognized as a medical home.

Basis of Statement Presentation

The consolidated financial statements arc presented on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared consistent with the American Institute of Ccnificd Public Accountants AudU and Accounting Guide,,
Health Care Organizations (Audit Guide). All significant intercompany transactions between MSHC and MSCDC
have been eliminated in consolidation.

Effective July I, 2018, the Organization adopted Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-U Not-for-
Profit Entities (Topic 958). The ASU amends the current reporting model for nonprofit organizations and enhances
their required disclosures. The major changes include: (a) requiring the presentation of only two classes of net assets
now entitled "net assets without donor restrictions" and "net assets with donor restrictions", (b) modifying the
presentation of underwater endowment funds and related disclosures, (c) requiring the use of the places In service
approach to recognize the expirations of restrictions on gifts used to acquire or construct long-lived assets absent
explicit donor stipulations otherwise, (d) requiring that all nonprofits present en analysis of expenses by function
and nature in cither the statement of activities, a separate statement or in the notes and disclose a summary of the
allocation methods used to allocate costs, (c) requiring the disclosure of quantitative and qualitative information
regarding liquidity and availability of resources, (0 presenting Investment return net of external and direct expenses,
and (g) modifying other financial statement reporting requirements and disclosures intended to increase the
usefulness of nonprofit financial statements.

Implementation of ASU 2016-14 did not require reclassification or restatement of any opening balances
related to the periods presented. Net assets previously reported as unrestricted are now reported as net assets without
donor restrictions. Net asset previously reported as temporarily restricted net assets arc now reported as net asset
with donor restrictions. A footnote on liquidity has been added (Note 16).

to



MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDURY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Pyliclcs (continued):

of Net Assets

The Organizaiion reports information regarding its consolidated financial position and activities to two
classes of net assets; net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

(!) Net Assets without Donor Restrictions - represent those resources for which there are no
restrictions by donors as to their use. They are renccted on the f.nanctal statements as without
donor restrictions.

(2) Net Assets with Donor Restrictions - represent tliose resources, the uses of which have been
restricted by donors to specific purposes or the passage of time and/or must retain intact, in
perpetuity. The release from restrictions results from the satisfaction of the restricted purposes
specified by the donor.

Estimates

The Organization uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements in ^
accountinc orinciplcs generally accepted In the United States of America. Those estimates and assumptions affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and the reported revenues
and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Casli and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits, petty cash funds and investments
months or less, and exclude amounts xvhosc use is limited by Board designation or other arrangements under trust
agreements or with third-party payers.

Cwh in Excess nf FniC-lnsiirecl Limits

The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which at times,
limits. Accounts arc generally guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to certain limits.
The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts.

Receivables

Palieni receivables are carried at their estimated eollectible aiaotints. Patiettt credit is geaerally extended on a
short-term basis; thus, patient receivables do not bear interest.

Patient receivables arc periodically evaluated for colleclability based on credit histoi^ and current financial
condition. The Organization uses the allowance method to account for uncollectible accounts receivable.

Pfftpertv and Equipment

Property and equipment acquisitions arc recorded at cost. Property and equipment donated for Organization
operations are recorded at fair value at the dale of receipt. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are expensed when
incurred and bcltcrmcnls are capitalized.

II



MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

Summary of Signiricant Accounting Policies

Depreciation is provided over ihc estimated useful life of each class of depreciable asset and is computed
on the straight-line method. Equipment under capital leases is amortized on the straight-line method over the life of
the capital lease. Such amortization is included in depreciation and amortization in the financial statements.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

YgARS

Buildings 5.40
Leasehold improvements 5

•  Equipment 3.7
Furniture and fixtures 5 . 15
Capital leases 3-15

The Organization reviews the carrying value of property and equipment for impairment whenever events
and circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash
flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. In cases where undiscounted expected future cash
flows are less than carrying value, an impairment loss Is recognized equal to an amount by which the carrying value
exceeds the fair value of assets. The factors considered by management In performing this assessment include
current operating results, trends and prospects, as well as the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and
other economic factors.

Contrnctufll Arranncmenis with Third-Pflrtv

The Medicare and Mcdicaid programs pay the Organization for services at predetennined rates by treatment.
The Organization is reimbursed for Medicare cost reimbursable items at a tentative rate with final settlement
determined after Ihc submission of annual cost reports and audits thereof by the Medicare fiscal Inlcrmediary. Changes
in Medicare and Medicaid programs or reduction of funding levels for programs could have an adverse effect on future
amounts recognized as net patient service revenue.

The laws and regulations goveming the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation. As a result, there Is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by a material
amount in the near term.

The Organization also enters into preferred provider agreements with certain commercial Insurance earners.
Payment arrangements to the Organization under these agreements include discounted charges and fee schedule
payments.

Net Patient Service Revenue

Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payers
and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with
third-party payors.

12



mid-state health center and subsidury
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended June. 30,2019 and 2018

1. g|.mpinrv of Sipnlficant Aypnuntlng Policies fcontinucfl):

r.rant Revcnuc

The OrsaniMtion recognizes support funded by grants determined to be exchange transactions as the,

adjustiDcnls could be required.

("ontribulions

arc satisfted in the same reporting period are ciassified as net assets without donor restriction.
rharitv Carc

,r.=r
determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as revenue.

[flfomeTaxes

MSHC and MSCDC ore not-for-profit corporations as described in Se'ction 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
code (CoXd are «em^fro: Federal^ncome ties on related income pursuant to Section 50i(a) of the Code.

that it has appropriate sup,mil f-,' ' ™ and changes in net

S: r Lrnmr^e'Cnirat!™ °m\nageinent beiieves it is no longer subject to examinations for the years
prior to 2015.

Advertisina

Advertising costs arc charged to operations when incurred. Total advertising expense for the years ended June
30.2019 and 2018 was $22,105 and S23.034. respectively.

pimr-tional cf Expenses

Expenses that can be identified with specific program or supporting services are charged ^bxpensw ma pxDcnscs that are associated with more than one program or supporting service arc

S^b's:^'on :n\v:::L by management utilizing tneasurements for time and effort, square footage and/or
encounter based statistics.
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

1. Summary of Stgnificnnt Accounting Policies tcontinuedk

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over Expenses

The consolidated statements of operations Include excess (deficit) of revenues over expenses. Changes in net
assets without restrictions which are excluded from excess (deficit) of revenues over expenses, consistent with industry
practice, include contributions and grants of long>lived assets.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The canying amount of cash, patient accounts receivable, accounts and notes payable and accrued expenses
approximates fair value.

Reclassincallons

i

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year's Hnancial statements to conform to the current
year presentation. These reclassifications have no effect on the previously reported change In net assets.

Liquidltv

Assets are presented in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position according to their
nearness of conversion to cash and liabilities according to the neamess of their maturity and resulting use of cash.

New Pronouncements

The FASB issued ASU No. 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidancefor Contributions
Received and Contributions Made. The ASU which becomes effective for the Organization's consolidated financial
statements as of and for the year ending June 30, 2020, provides guidance on whether a receipt from a third-party
resource provider should be accounted for as a contribution (nonreciprocal transaction) within the scope of Topic
958, Not-for-profit Entities, or as an exchange (reciprocal) transaction.

The FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases. The ASU. which becomes effective for the Organization's
consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ending June 30, 2021, requires the full obligation of long-
term leases to be recorded as a liability with a corresponding right of use asset on the statement of financial position.

The Organization is evaluating the impact of these standards on Its future financial statements.

2. Charity Care;

The Organization maintains records to identify and monitor the level of charity care they provide. These
records include the amount of charges foregone for services and supplies furnished under their charity care policies.
The total cost estimate Is based on an overall cost-to-charge ratio applied against gross charity care charges. The net
cost of charity care provided was approximately $280,000 and $337,000 for the.years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

14



MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to ConsoUdated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended June 30,20 i 9 and 2018

2. rharitv Car<> rcontinucdV.

|„ 2019 and 2018; 564 and 533 patients received

Delemiination of eligibility for charity care is granted on a sliding fee basis:

For dental se.ices, patients with f™"?! iX^omilarfeir^s^ no't baTan"
Income Poverty Guidelines shall only ^qual to 101%, but not exceeding 125% of theoftheiracconnt for services recetved. Those

Those With family income a. least epua. to .51%, bo. not
exceeding 200% ofthe guidelines, receive a 45% discount.

ForBllotherse..ices.patlen.swi.hramilyincomel«^^^^
Income Poverty Guidehnes shall only ^ g, 1^05, equal to 101%, but not exceeding 138% of the
of their account for services received. Those . encounter Those with family income at least
;tffn^:bm™t««^^:r60=e;oid;,incs^^^
?ca"rr"hS"t:^^ .0 >8>%. bh. «ceeding200%of the goidelincs, will be
responsible for a $50 fee for each encounter.

3  Sr^rvlcc Ryvonn^ nnH Patient Arcounts Receivable:

Patient service revenue, ne. of eonrraetual aiiowanees and discounts (bn. before .be provision for bad debts),raiicm >ci vivv ivvviiwvv, -•

recognized was as follows for the years ended June 30:
2019

Gross

Charges

Medicare

Mcdicaid

Blue Cross

Other third-party payers

Self-pay

Total

3.168,938
1.780.916
1.943,516
2.212,431
621.569

Contractual

Adjustments

736,684

576.871

681,502

754,360

Sliding Fee
Adjustments

S  9.727.370 $ 2.749.417 _ $^

Patient

Service

Revenue

2.432.254

1,204.045
1,262.014

1.458.071
364.965

256.604 S 6.721.349

256,604
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

Patient Service Revenue and Palicnt Accounts Rcceivabte fconttmioriV

2018

Medicare

Medicaid

Blue Cross

Oihcr ihird-party payers
Self-pay

Tola!

Gross Contractual Sliding Fee

Patient

Service

S  3,056,284 $  760,522 J $ 2,295.762
1,629,184 358,716 - 1.270,468
2,012,056 587,538 - 1.424,518
2,491,465 781,926 . 1.709.539
733,202 - 369.039 364.163

S  9,922,191 $  -2,488.702 $ 369.039 S 7,064.450

Patient accounts receivable Is reported net of estimated contractual allowances and allowance for doubtful
accounts, as follows, as of June 30:

2012 2m.

Patient accounts receivable j 1,247,726 S 1.266.792
Less: Estimated contractual allowances and discounts 360,278 348 593
Less: Estimated allowance for uncollectible accounts 317,000 235,000
Patient accounts receivable, net , $ 570 448 $ 683 199

Patient accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for doubtful accounts. In evaluating the collectability
of accounts receivable, the Organization analyzes its past history and Identifies trends for each of its major payor
sources of revenue to estimate the appropriate allowance for doubtful accounts and provision for bad debts.
Management regularly reviews data about these major payor sources of revenue in evaluating the sufficiency of the
allowance for doubtful accounts. For receivables associated with service provided to patients who have third-party
coverage, the Organization analyzes contractually due amounts and provides an allowance for doubtful accounts and a
provision for bad debts, if necessa^. For receivables associated with self-pay patients, including both patients without
insurance and patients with deductible and eopayment balances due for which third-party coverage exists for only part
of the bill, the Organization records a significant provision for bad debts in the period of service on the basis of its past
experience, which indicates that many patients arc unable or unwilling to pay the portion of their bill for which they are
financially responsible. The difference bct\veen the standard rates and the amounts actually collected after all
reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted is charged off against the allowance for doubtful accounts.

4.. Estlmnfed Thlrd-Pnrtv Settlements:

Provision has been made for estimated adjustments that may result from final settlement of reimbursable
amounts as may be required upon completion and audit of related cost finding reports under terms of contracts with

Medicare and Medicaid Services and the New Hampshire Division of Welfare (Medicaid).
Differences between estimated adjustments and amounts determined to be recoverable or payable arc accounted for
as income or expense in the year that such amounts become known.
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

5. rants and State Contracts:

The Orsanizalion receives various reimbursement grams from the federal government Slate of New
Hampshire and ofher public and private agencies. The following is a summary of the grant activity for the years
June 30:

HRSA 330 Gram - 2018-2022
Bi-Siaie PCA Gram

NH Primary Care Comracts
Emergency Preparedness Granls
HRSA-IGNITE Grams

Olher Grant and Contract Awarfs'

Grant and State Contraci Revenue
2019 2015

1,585,879

154,332

153,293

322,620

80,641

167.391

1,500,224

8,238

150,146

338,502

163.970

98.954

Outstanding Receivable
20152019

284,968

105.528

25,550

39,837

19.863

S  2.464.156 S 2.260,034 S 475.746

141,281

38.324

93.644

18,683

291,932

6. Property end Eninnmcnt;

Property and equipment consisted of the following as of June 30:

Land

Buildings
Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Less: Accumulated depreciation

2019

525,773

6.346.118
170,174

1.400.452

8,442,517

2.610,391

2018

525,773

6,346.118
170,174

1.284.411

8,326.476
2.304,008

S  5.832.126 S 6,022,468_

Depreciation and amortisation expense, including amojlMo" f"'
years ended June 30.2019 and 2018 amounted to S306.383 and $297,293. respectively.

7. l.tiic of Credit;

The Organisation had an available line of credit with a maximum
SI 00,000 as of June 30,2019 and 2018, respectively. The line "mes an mterest 7 CP™-
line is secured by all business assets. The line was not drawn upon as of June 30.2019 and 2018.
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

8. Long-Term Debt;

Long-term debt consisted of the following as ofJune 30:

Woodsville Guarantee Savings Bank note payable, maturing
August 2033, principal and interest payable in 240 monthly
installments ofSI8,194 through August 2033. Interest is
charged at a rate of 5.25%.

Woodsville Guarantee Savings Bank note payable, maturing
August 2018, principal and interest payable in 60 monthly
installments of S3,757. Interest is charged at a rate of 4%.

United States of America Department of Agriculture note
payable, maturing April 2045, principal and interest
payable in 360 monthly payments of $10,904. Interest is
charged at a rate of 3.5% (see Note 9a).

Total long-term debt
Less: unamortized deferred financing costs
Total long-term debt, net of unamortized deferred financing costs
Less: current portion

Long-term debt, less current portion

2019 2018

S 2,178,682 $ 2,279,730

7,477

4,395,531

40.091
4,355,440
160.374

2.264.725
4,551,932

42.758
4.509.174
160.342

s 4.192.066 ^ 4.34R.837

9a In September 2013, the Organization refinanced its then outstanding Woodsville Guarantee Savings
Bank interim note payable with a construction loan. The new loan had an advancement amount of up
to $2,700,000 and called for interest only payments at a rate of 5% beginning October 2013, for 23
consecutive months, and I balloon payment of principal and accrued unpaid interest due September
2015. In April 2015, the Or^nization entered into a long-term debt arrangement with the United
States of America Department of Agriculture ("USDA") totaling $2,423,000. The proceeds from the
loan were used to refinance the construction loan balance and unpaid accrued interest and to satisfy
outstanding invoices related to the construction of the Bristol property. The loan is secured by the
Organization's properly located in Bristol, New Hampshire. The loan agreement requires the
Organization to establish a reserve account which is to be funded in monthly installments of $1,090
until the accumulated sum of reserve funding reaches $130,848, after which no further funding is
required except to replace withdrawals. As of June 30, 2019, the reserve account totaled $69,659,
reliecled on the consolidated statement of nnancial position as restricted cash.

Future maturities oflong-term debt are as follows as of June 30,2019:

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

ThereaRer

S  160,374
168,229
176,256

184,679

193,328

3,512.665

$  4.395.531
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended June 30.2019 and 2018

9. rflnital LcflsgObtieations;

As of June 30 2019. the Organization had an outstanding capital lease obligation for a certain pt«c ofequipment The';i'of the lease a^ement is for a period of 48 months

capital lease as of June 30. 2019 was $8,000. Accumulated amortization was $7,667 and $5,667 asot June 30,
and 2018, respectively.

The following is a schedule, by yenr, offuture minimum lease payments under .he eapi.al leases as of June 30:
2020

Total minimum lease payments
LESS: Amount representing interest —

Present value of minimum lease payments
LESS: Current portion —

Long-term capital lease obligation

600

9_
591

591

10. IVlQinrnctlcc Insurance Coverngc;

The U S Department of Health and Human Services deemed the Organization covered under the F'^'ol jort
Claims Act (FTCA) for damage for personal injury, including death, resulting from the performance of medical,

1 ulLv,„d rntaedZmtU^^ ̂ CA coverage is comparable to an occurrence policy without a monetary cap.surgical, dental and related functio s. g Orcanizaiion purchased medical malpractice insurance under

FTCA.

receivables. AS ofjune 30, 2019 and 2018, s.,^

r;uent; d^d :r;^irL ̂ ruts ̂rssrr anU. I„s oceur«^which WH, be the basis of a future
material claim.

11. Commitments niid rontlngcncicst

Real F.smte Taxes - Tlie Organization and Ihe Town of Plymouth, NH agreed to a payment in lieu of real

^re^:;an:i!h^Town o„ an
annual basis.
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDURY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

n. Commitments and Contingencies (continued^:

340B - The Organization participates in the 340B Drug Discount Program (the 340B Program)
which enables qualifying health care providers to purchase drugs from pharmaceutical suppliers at a substantial
discount as a Covered Entity. The 340B Program is managed by the Health Resources and Services Administration
(HRSA) Ofnce of Pharmacy Affairs. The Organization Is required to undergo a self-audit process to determine
compliance with 340B Program guidelines. The 340B statutes also explicitly authorize HRSA to audit Covered Entities
to ensure they arc compliant with the 3408 Program. All Covered Entitles are also required to recertify compliance
with the 340B Program on an annual basis, including an attestation to full compliance with the 3408 Program. The
Organization earns revenue under the 340B Program by purchasing pharmaceuticals at a reduced cost to fill
prescriptions to qualified patients. The Organization contracts with certain third-party pharmacies that dispense the
pharmaceuticals to its patients. 340B revenue is included in other operating revenue within the consolidated statements
of operations and totaled $1,476,030 and $1,062,379 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The
cost of pharmaceuticals, dispensing fees to the pharmacies, consulting fees and other costs associated with the 340B
Program are included in operating expenses in the consolidated statements of operations and totaled $512,776 and
$353,521 for the years ended June 30,2019 and 2018, respectively.

12. Concentration of Credit Risk:

The Organization grants credit without collateral to Its patients, most of whom are local residents and ore
insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payors was as follows
at June 30:

201? 2018

Medicare 11.7% 15.4%
Medicaid 22.2% 20.9%
Blue Cross 15.7% .18.6%
Patients 22.7% 14.9%

Other third-party payors 27.7% 30,2%

100.0% IQQ.0%

13. Other Operating Revenue;

The following summarizes components ofolhcr operating revenue for the years ended June 3D:

$

Other operating revenue:

Pharmacy income • 340B 1,476.030
Anthem shared savings
Montcssori Center

Other operating revenue

83,807

155,676

119.096

1,834,609

2m

1.062,379
28,835
164,008

53.585

1.308.807
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and'for the Years Ended June 30,2019and2018

14. Rgtiremcnt Program:

During 2007. the Organization adopted a tax-sheltered annuity plan under 4D3(b) of the Code f®'^e'ble
employees Eligible employees arc specified as those who normally work more than 20 hours per week notdlsmed as irptndem contractors The Organization provides for matching employee contributions 50% of
the first 6% contributed. Contributions to the plan for the years ended June 30. 2019 and 2018 were $144,309
S154.961, respectively.

15. Health Insurance;

Prior to the fiscal year ended June 3D. 2019. the Organization offered health
employees under available Health Maintenance Organization (HMO) and Preferred Provider Organiza ( )
plans.

During the year ended June 30. 2019. the Organization began participation in a captive

ILmrfo? unpl claims with sefvicc dales as of, or before June 30 which had no. ye, been reported lo.aimg
$28,500. included under the caption "accrued expenses and other current habiUtics .

Dcductihie requiremenls coder Ihe Captive Plan range from $2,000 .0 $4,000,
seieeted, before ihe Orgaoizalioo, coder its' health reimhorsemeot arrangement, is obligated to pay cp to $500 per
participant.

The Oiganization provides for an acercai based on ihe '1;°
claims and an e^ima.ed ii.hiiiiy for claims inecrred hut not yet reported. A, Jttne 30 2018 aeeruedexposes and other ecrrent liabilities" ineicde an aeerced iiahiiiiy related to these plans of $20,000 and $819,
respectively.

16. Liouldltv:

Financial assets available for general expenditures within one year of the balance sheet date consist of the
following as of June 30: - -

2m 2018

Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable, net
Estimated third-party settlements
Contracts and gmnt receivable
Other receivables

S  1,764.253 $  1.453,543

570,448 683,199

88.708 98,348

475,746 291,932

263.318 206.716

S  3.162.473 S  2.733.738
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDURY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

16. Liouiditv (continued^;

As part of ils liquidity management strategy, the Organization structures its financial assets to be available as
its general expenditures, liabilities and other obligations as they come due. The Organization has certain restricted cash
balances totaling $69,659 and $53,419 as of June 30,2019 and 2018, respectively, representing funds required to be set
aside as a building maintenance reserve for the Organization's Bristol, New Hampshire location. These balances have
not been included In the Organization financial assets available for general expenditure within one year.

17. Subsequent Events;

The Organization has reviewed events occurring after June 30, 2019 through November 19,2019, the date
the board of trustees accepted the final draft of the consolidated financial statements and made them available to be
issued. The Organization has not Identified other events requiring disclosure that have occurred between the period
of June 30,2019 and the report date, November 19, 2019. The Organization has not reviewed events occurring after
the report date for their potential impact on the information contained in these consolidated financial statements.
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mid-state health center
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Grantor/Pass-Thfough Grantor/PrORram Title

U.S. Department ofHcalth and Human Services:

■ Htnllh Ctnlcr Progrmi. (Community Hunllh Ccnlm, Mignmt Huulth Ccntms, Health
Care for the HomeJcss and Public Housing Primary Care)

RutttI Health Care Survicus Outrcaah, Rural Health Network Development and Small
Health Care Provider Quality Improvement Program

Passed through B»-Statc Primary Care Association, Inc.:
Grants to States to Support Oral Health Workforce Activities

Total passed through Bi-Slale Primary Care Association. Inc.

Passed through N.H. Department of Health and Human Services:
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse

Immunization Cooperative Agreements

Preventive HeuUh end Health Services Block Grant Funded Solely with Prevention
and Public Health Funds (PPHF)

Hospital Preparedness Program (HPP) and Public Health Emergency Preparedness
(PHHP) Aligned Cooperative Agreements

Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant to the Stales

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Projccls of Regional and
National Significorwe

Total passed through N.H. Department of Health and Human Services

Federal

CFDA

Number

93.224

93.912

93.236

93.959

93.268

93.758

93.074

Comprised

of93.889&

93.069

93.994

93.243

Pass-through Entity or
Award Identifying

Number

Total U-S-Department of Health and Human Services

TOTAL EXPENDrrURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

The accompunying notes to finartcial statements are an integral part of this sehedule.

Federal

Expenditures

T12HP30316

FAIN TI010035

FAIN H23IP000757

FAIN B010T009037

FAIN U90TP000535

Unkrwwn

FAfN SP020796

Passed

through to

Sobrecipients

1.585.879

80.641

154.322

154.322

110.382

10.300

5.767

49.492

39,854

110.000

325.795

2.146.637

2,146,637



MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30,2019

I. Basis of Presentation;

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award
activity of MSHC under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2019. The information in
the schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 US. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Since the schedule presents only a selected portion of the oj5crations of MSHC, it is not intended to and
does not present the statement of financial position, statement of operations and changes in net assets or cash flows
ofMSHC.

2. Significant Accounting Policies;

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures
are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of
expenditures are not allowable or arc limited as to reimbursement. The Schedule includes Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) and pass-through award numbers when available.

3. Indirect Cost Rate;

MSHC elected to use the lO^deminimis indirect cost rate.
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•rvi:i-.U. SIMMS & S-r.SAUVKini.CI*As. P.c.

Rcnorl 1

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial

Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standnrds

lb ihc Bonrd orTrustccs of
Mid-Slalc HcallhCcmcr;

Wc liiivc oudilcd, in nccordnncc with Ihe uuditing slnndinds generally ucccplcd in llic Unilcd Sinies oi::d Ih^lnndards npplicblc lo Hnancial nndi.s coninnKd I"
issued by ihc Conmlrollcr General of ihc Unilcd States, llic f.nanc.al staicmcius of M d-Sl. tc IcalUi
Ccnic-.l^'MSHC") (a nonprom orgnni-Xniion), whicb comprise lire sialcmcnl of
Jnhe 30, 2019, mid llie relmcd suilcmeius ofopermions mid clinngcs in net nsscls
yciir llicn ended, mid llio rclaled notes to the niimicliil stmcnionts, mid have issued our re|)ort
liatcfl November 19, 2019.

Inlcntal Control Over Fhutncial Reporting

In nlminins mid perrorniing our audit of the nnancial slatcnients, we considered MSl lC's internal control0  r ?cia r poning (intcrntil. control) to determine the audit procedures that are nppropr.a e in he
e reu." the^iiirpose of expressing our opinion on the nnancial statements, hi n.it lor th
ptmprof expressing In opinion on the crfectiveness of Ml ISC's internal control. Aceordnigly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness ol MSI IC s mtcrnai control.

A r/e/ic/ericv ;» vMrna! cmiirnl exists when the design or operation of n control
managcnient or employees, in Ihc normal course of perlbrniing tlieir „
sti-i^r. nnd coiTcct misslaicmcius on » timely basis. A nialenal weakness is a dci cicncy. or u
combination ofdcncicncics. in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a matcnn

entity's Unaneinl statements will not be prevented, or detected and corree ed on
llmclv basis A si^nijluunl tlejldency is a dcriciency, or a combination ofdcncicncics. in internal control
11!", is IcsTsevero ,L a ntalerial iVcakness, yet hnporlanl cuough lo nterh altenhon by those charged
with governance.
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Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards (continued)

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not Identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified. ,

Compliance ami Oilier Matters

As part of obtaining-reasonable assurance about whether MSHC's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,-
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no Instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's
internal control or on'compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication Is not suitable for any other purpose.

Lebanon, New Hampshire
November 19,20)9
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Rcnort?

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on
Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

'I'o ihc Board of Trustees of
Mid-Stnlc Hcallh CeiUcr;

Report on Coniplioncefor Each Major Federal Pruarom

Wc have audited Mid-Stale Mcaltli Center's ("MSHC") compliance with ll.c types of compliance
rcqiiircmcius described in the OMR Compliance Supplemeni lltat could have a ducct and mnicnnl e lect
on each ofMSHC's major federal programs for the year ended June 30. 2019. MHSC's major fcdcrn
programs are Idenlificd in the .summary of auditors' results section o( the accompanying schedule ol
findings and questioned costs.

Management '.v Responsihllily

ManaBonKiit is responsible lor complianee rvilh federal sUilutes, rcBulnlions and ihc lerms and condilions
ofils federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Aiiditorx' RespansihilUy

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for caeii of MSI-IC's major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance reqiiiremcnts referred to above. Wc conducted our audit ol
compliahcc in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stalc.s of America;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Chvernmeni Aiidiiin^ Siondarcb, 'ssucd by the
Comptroller Gencnil of the United Stales; and the audit rcquircmcins of I illc 2 U.S. Code of hcdend
lieeukahns Part 200. Uniform Adminislralive Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirement.^
for Federal Awird.s (Uniform Guidiiiicc). fbosc standards and the Uniform Guidance require that wc
olan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncoinphancc with the types o
compliance i-cquircmcnts referred to above that could have a direct und material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An atidH includes examining, on a test basis, evidence aboui MSHC s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as wc considered necessary m the
circumstances.

Wc believe lluu our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. Mowcvcr, our audit docs not provide a legal dclcrmmaUon of MSHC s compliance.
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Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on
Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

(continued)

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, MSHC complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended June 30,2019.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
r

Management of MSHC is responsible for establishing and maintaining efTectivc internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered MSHC's Internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material efTect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
efTectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of MSHC's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to rnerit attention by those charged
with govemance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance Is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Lebanon, New Hampshire
November 19,2019
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
As of and For the Year Ended J une 30,2019

SECTION I - SUM MARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

Financlfll Stfllcmcnts

Type of auditors' report issued

Internal control over financial reporling;

Material weakness Identified

Significant deficiencies identified that arc not considered
to be material weaknesses

Non-compliance material to financial statements noted —

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness Identified —

Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses —

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs

Any audit findings disclosed that arc required to be reported In
accordance with Section 200.516(a) of the Uniform Guidance _

Idcnlificaiion of major programs:

CFDA Number pfntiie of Fcdcrat/l/JCfl Proerpm

93 224 Health Center Progi-am

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs

Auditec qualified as low-risk auditce? —

SECTION 1) - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

Unmodified

Yes X No

Yes X None reported

Yes X No

Yes X No

Yes X None reported

Unmodified

Yes X No

$750,000

X Yes ^No

There were no findings related to the financial statements which are required to be reported in accordance with
generally accepted Oovcmmcnl Auditing Standards (GAGAS).

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

There were no findings or questioned costs for Federal awards (as defined in Section 200.516(a) of the Uniform
Guidance) that are required to be reported.
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Mm-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidating Statement of Financial Position - Schedule 1
As of June 30,2019

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Patient accounts receivable, net

Estimated third-party settlements
Contracts and grants receivable
Prepaid expenses and other receivables

Total current assets

Long-term assets
Property and equipment, net '
Other assets

Total long-term assets

Total assets

Liabilities and net assets

Current liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Accrued payroll and related expenses
Accrued earned time

Current portion of long-term debt
Current portion of capital lease obligations

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities
Lease deposits

Long-term debt, less current portion
Capital lease obligations, less current portion

Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets without donor restrictions

Total liabiniles and net assets

MSHC

1,273,179

69,659
570,44«

88,708

475,746

417,584

2,895J24

2,547JI2

139,882

2.687.194

S  5,582^18

204,907

51,001

374.802

308,765

53,891

591

993,957

2,157,382

2,157382

3.1SU39

2.431,179

$  5.582318

MSCDC

491.074

ELIMINATIONS

491,074

3.284,814

3384,814

S  3.775,888

37,610

15,461

106,483

159,554

121,619

2,037,684

2.159303

2318.857

1,457.031

3,775,888

(37.610)

(37,610)

(121.619)

(121.619)

(37,610) $

(37.610)

(121,619)

(121.619)

(159329)

TOTAL

1,764,253

69,659

570,448

88,708
475,746

379.974

3348.788

5,832.126

18.263

5,850389

(159329) $ 9,199.177

204.907

66,462

374,802
308,765

160,374

591

1,115,90!

4,195,066

4.195.066

5310.967

3,888.210

(159329) S 9.199.177
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidating Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets - Schedule 2
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

MSHC MSCDC F1 1M>NAT10NS

Chan^ in net assets without donor restrictions
Revenue, gains and olhcr support

Patient service revenue (net of contractual allowances and discounts)
Provision for uncollectible accounts

Net patient service revenue

Contracts and grants
Contributions

Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restrictions

Total revenue, gains and other support

Expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Insurance

Professional fees

Supplies and expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Interest expense

Total expenses

Change in net assets without donor restrictions

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

$  . 6,72U49 $
241.053

S
:

6,480,296 -

•

2,464.156

13,987

1,913,520 310,149 - (389,060)

10,871.959 310,149 (389,060)

6.115,133
1378,376.

33,090

901,493
1,779,867
187,743

83.642

119,202
768

118,640

119,766

(80,849)

(308311)

10,479.344 358,376 (389,060)

■392,615 (48,227) -

2.038.564 .  1.505,258- -

S  2.431,179 $ 1.457,031 S -

TOTAL

6,72 U49
241,053

6,480,296

2,464.156
13,987

1,834,609

10,793,048

6,115,133
1,378,376

33,090
939,846

1,472,424
306,383
203,408

10,448,660

344388

3343.822

3,888,210
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidating Statement of Financial Position - Schedule 3
AsofJunc30,2018

TOTAL

1,453,543

53,419
683,199

98^48
291,932

357,533

2,937,974

6,022,468

6,022,468

8,960,442

122,653

71,462

350,636
354^444

I603«

•  7,460

1.066,997

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Patient accounts receivable, net

Estimated third-party settlements

Contracts and grants receivable
Prepaid expenses and other receivables

Total current assets

Long-term assets

Property and equipment, net
Deposits and other assets

Total long-term assets

Total assets

Liabilities and net assets

Current liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Accrued earned lime

Current portion of long-term debt
Current portion of capital lease obligations

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities
Lease deposits
Long-term debt, less current portion
Capital lease obligations, less current portion

Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets vnthout donor restrictions

Total liabilities and net assets

MSHC

946,166

53,419

683,199

98p4S
291,932

375333

2,448397

2,619,014

121,376

2.740390

122,653

55306
350,636
354,444

51,817

7.460

942316

2,207,116
791

2307,907

5,150.223

2,038,564

MSCDC

507377

507377

3,403,454

3,403,454

S  .5,188,787 S 3.910.831

17,800

16,156

108,525

142.481

ELIMINATION

121.376

2,141,716

2363,092

2,405373"

1.505.258

(17,800)

(17,800)

(121,376)

' (121,376)

(139,176)

(17,800)

(17.800)

(121,376)

$  5,188,787 S 3,910.831

4348,832
791

4.349,623

S.416.620

-  3343,822

(139.176) S 8.960.442

(121376)

(139,176)
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidating Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets - Schedule 2
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Changes in net assets withoat donor restrictions
Revenue, gains and other support

Patient service revenue (net of contractual allowances
and discounts)

Provision for uncollectible accounts
Net patient service revenue

Contracts and grants
Contributions

Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restrictions

Total revenue, gains and other support

Experwes
Salaries and w^cs
Employee benefits
Insurance

Professional fees

Supplies and expenses
Depreciation "and amortization
Interest expense

Total expenses

Change in net assets without donor restrictions

Changes in net assets with donor restrictions
Net assets released from restrictions
Chan^ in net assets with donor restrictions

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

M§HC MSCDC

7,064,450 S .

280.637 -

6,783,813 •

2,260,034 -

13,903 -

1,308,265 308,753
11,958 -

10,377,973 308,753

6.490,478
1,469,123 -

137,116 -

554,526 8,530

1.645,044 11,937

178,653 118,640

77,275 126,140

10.552^15 265,247

(174J242) ' 43,506

(11,958)

(11.958)

(186.200) 43,506

2.224,764 1.461,752

;  2,038.564 S 1,505.258

FTIMINATIONS

(308,211)

(308,211)

(308,211)

(308,211)

TOTAL

7,064,450
280,637

6,783,813

2,260,034
13,903

1,308,807
11,958

10J78.51S

6.490,478

1,469,123
137,116
563,056

1,348,770
297,293
203.415

10.509,251

(130.736)

(11,958)

(11.958)

(142,694)

3,686,516

3,543,822
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— BOARD OF DIRECTORS CONTACT LIST —

BOARD OFFICERS (4)
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Term Exp: 6/30/20
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Term Exp: 6/30/20
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Carol Bears, Director
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Term Exp: 6/30/22
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James Dalley, Director
Term Exp: 6/30/19
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CURRICULUM VITAE

Diane L. Arsenault, MD; FAAFP, HMDC

Office Address: Mid-State Health Center

101 Boulder Point Drive

Suite 1

Plymouth, NH 03264
Phone: (603) 536-4000
Fax; (603) 536-4001
E-mail: darsenault@midstateheaIth.Qrg

Licensure: New Hampshire # 8250; initial 1990, expiration date
6/30/19

Certifications:

Board certification - American Board of Family Medicine
Date of certification; 1983-1989

Dates of recertification: 1989-1995,1995-2002,

2002-2008, 2008-2018, 2018-2028
Certification of Added Qualification in Hospice and Palliative Medicine:

2012- 20,22

Certification - Hospice Medical Director Certification Board 2014-2020

Education: Dartmouth College, - A.B. cum iaude Biology 1973-1977
Dartmouth Medical School r: MD 1977 1980

Residency: St. Joseph's Hospital Family Practice Residency
Syracuse, NY 1980 - 1983
Chief resident; 1982-1983

Professional Mid-State Health Center, Plymouth, NH 1996 - present
Experience Pemi-Baker Community Health and Hospice Plymouth, NH

Hospice Medical Director 1998 - present
Mad River Health Center, Campton, NH 1990 - 1996



Oak Orchard Community Health Center, Albion, NY 1983-
1996

Speare Memorial Hospital, Plymouth, NH
Active staff 1990 - present
Medical Staff President 1996 - 1998, 2007 - 2011
Medical Staff Vice-President 1994 -1996; 2005 -

2007

Medical Staff Secretary/Treasurer 2003 - 2005

Professional American Academy of Family Practice - Fellow
Societies American Geriatrics Society

American Medical Association

New Hampshire Medical Society
Governing Council member 2015- present

American Academy of Hospice and Palliative Medicine
New Hampshire Hospice and Palliative Care Organization

Public . New Hampshire Board of Medicine Medical Review
Service Subcommittee 2005 - 2008

Plymouth Congregation United Church of Christ
Ukama partnership 2005 - present.
Finance Committee 2012 - 2018 ^
Human Relations Committee 2018 - present

Teaching Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth
Clinical Assistant Professor 1995 - present

Community preceptor in third to fourth year
medical student primary care rotation
Community Preceptor in first to second year
Medical student "On Doctoring" course



Amy S. Knight

Educational Experience
United States Aero Medical School. US Air Force. San Antonio TX 1999
Certificate in Public Healih
Highlights: public health issues (such as TB), biochemistry, local organism risk assessments;

biochemical warfare training
Hesser College. Portsmouth. NH 1998
Health and Human Ser\>ices Program Courses
Focus: Psychology and biology

Public Health & Human Services Experience
Assistant Program Manager. New England Emergency Response nnvsr NH 1998-2001
• Managed installarion training for personal emergency response systems for senior citizens and physically

challenged individuals
» Troubl^hooting equipment failures
• Data entry, billing, public relations

Technician. Walgreen's Pharmacy, Rochester, NH I996-I998
• Assisted In prescription preparation
• Client services — register, slock, photo lab, malnlaincd balanced cash drawer

Public Health Technician. Air National Guard, Portsmouth, NH 1998-2002
• Performed public fadlily inspections
• Briefed personnel pre- and post-deployments on overseas diseases, biological hazards, and local zoological risks
• Managed reproductive health program such as risk assessracnt for on-base chemical exposure during pregnancy
• Assisted in TB and other testing pre- and post-deployment
• Assisted in testing of audiological equipment for safety of military personnel

Animal Care Experience
Assistant Groomer. Petco, Portsmouth, NH 2002-2003
• Cared for small domestic animals (dogs and cats, 2-140 lbs)
• Bathed, brushed, attended to cars, nails, eyes, anri other health issues
• Interacted with public concerning relevant animal care questions and concerns
• Malnlaincd cages' conditions, care of sick animals (birds, ferrets, other rodents)

Stall Hand. Riddle Family Farm, Wakefield, NH 1994
• Cared for, cleaned Iiorse stalls
• Cleaned hooves and assisted in gelding

Customer Service Experience
Receptionist. Atlas Title, LLC, Dover, NH 2003
• Prepared title commiuncnts for clients
• Entered and maintained data for new clients

• Answered 4-line telephone; facilitated office communications

Assistant Manager. Lechter's, Newington, NH 2002
• Managed customer service needs
• Performed closing wd opening of store
• Maintained balanced cash drawer, nightly deposits, and store appearance

Amy S, Knight



2004
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc: Merchandising

Overnight Stock Associate

■  Stocked shelves

•  Built merchandise displays

•  Removed trash and debris

Wal-Mart Stores, Inc: Human Resources and Customer Service Departments 2005-2006

Customer Service Manager

■  Bulit personnel scheduling blocks according to regulations and company practices

■  Ordered change (currency) for operating cash register stations

•  Defused customer complaints and resolved issues with Wal-Mart clientele

Department Manager (Pets)

•  Stocked shelves with relevant merchandise for pet care

■  Ensured accurate pricing through sales, and managed SWAS reports

•  Ordered merchandise to maintain supply in a fast-moving department

Training Coordinator

■  Managed the schedules, and time adjustments, to employees

•  Made confidential reference calls, and set up interviews with prospective employees

•  Led orientation sessions for new employees

•  Answered all questions that sales associates brought to our office

Wal-Mart Stores, Inc: Pharmacy 2007-Present

Pharmacv Technician

•  Entering and maintaining data for online and computerized drug supply and Insurance needs

•  Filled orders for prescription drugs

•  Received and stocked inventory



•  Ensured proper identification and labeling of products

■  Called doctors' offices when necessary for trouble-shooting, insurance company Issues, or

clarification.
%

•  Performed problem-solving for other technicians and pharmacy associates (including crisis
management)

■  Managed the schedules, and time adjustments, for employees at my pharmacy, and for other

pharmacies in the Wal-Mart family.

•  Traveled to other Wal-Mart pharmacies in the state of NH to train new employees, clarify data

management issues, and be a problem-solver. »



Andrea M. Berry, D.O.

QUALIFICATIONS SUMMARY

D Professional, dedicated, self-motivated family practitioner with experience in a busy rural
family practice office

□ Understanding of medical issues affecting individuals and family dynamic
□ Understanding and implementation of Hospice concept
0 Substance Use Disorder treatment provider

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
Mid-State Health Center, Plymouth, Bristol. NH, 8/2012-present
Family Physician. Substance Use Disorder (Medication Assisted Treatment) provider
Lead clinician ofBristol office

Newfound Area Nursing Association, Bristol, NH, 3/20I3-present
Hospice Medical Director

^ Newfound Area Nursing Association, Bristol, NH, 5/2014-present
Medical Director

University of New England College of Osteopathic Medicine, 8/2015-present
Preceptor for third and fourth year medical students for Community Health rotation

EDUCATION
University of New England College of Osteopathic Medicine, Biddeford, ME
Doctor of Osteopathic Medicine^ 2009
W. Hadiey Hoyt Award Recipient, 2009

Seton Hall University, South Orange, NJ
Bachelor ofScience, 2003

Cum laudc
Masters of Science,2005

Summacum laude

postgrXduate training
PCOM/Heart of Lancaster Regional Medical Center, Lititz, PA
Family Medicine Resident, 6/2009 - 6/2012
Surgery and Pediatrics Department Awards, 2010
Chief Family Medicine Resident, 2011 -2012



LiCENSURE AND CERTIFICATION
NH Board of Medicine, 2011 -present
BLS Certification, 2009 - present

ACLS Certification, 2009 - 2012
Buprenorphine prescribercertification/DATA2000 Waiver, 2014-present

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS
American College of Osfeopathic Family Physicians. 2009 - present
American Academy of Family Physicians, 201 1 - present
American Osteopafliic Association, 2005 - present

REFERENCES

Available upon request



Office; Mid-State Health Center
100 Robic Road
Bristol, NH 03222
Main (603) 744-6200

Gary D. Diederich, M.D.

EDUCATION:
1971 - 1975

1975-1979

BA .History, Holy Cross College,
Worcester, MA

M.D. .The Pennsylvania State University,
Hershey, PA

postgraduate training-. P^CTICE
1979 1V8U Hospital, Akron. OH

1980 - 1982 RESIDENCY .FAMILY1950 195^ Akron City Hospital, Akron. OH

PRACTICE EXPERIENCE:
1980-1982

1980-1982

yl90-V92

8/84- 8/88

•8/88-.1993

1993-3/96

6/82 - present

emergency room physician (Part-time)
Alliance City Hospital. Alliance. OH

COURTESY STAFF (House Physician Coverage)
Robinson Memorial Hospital, Ravenna, OH

courtesy staff with privileges in Fwnily Practice
Speare Memorial Hospital, Plymouth, NH

VISITING STAFF with privileges in Family Pract'ce
Lakes Region General Hospital, Laconia, NH

active STAFF with privileges m Family I racuce
Lakes Region General Hospital, Laconia, NH

VISITING STAFF with privileges in Family Practice
Lakes Region General Hospital, Laconia, NH

active STAFF with privileges in Family P^^l'^e
Franklin Regional Hospital, Franklin, NH

board CERTIFICATION-. BOARD OF FAMILY PRACTICE

1988 .1994, 1994 .2001 Recertification

NEW HAMPSHIRE LICENSE#6515



Gary D. Diederich, M.D.
Page 2

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS:
1979-present
1981 - present
1983 - present
1983 - present

FACULTY APPOINTMENT:
1992 - present

HONORS:

1982

PUBLICATIONS:
03/82

MEMBER, American Academy of Family Physicians
MEMBER, American Medical Association
MEMBER, New Hampshire Medical Association
MEMBER, Merrimack County Medical Society
MEMBER, BOARD OF DIRECTORS

-Blue Cross/Blue Shield of New Hampshire, Manchester, NH
(term ended 3/94)

MEMBER, Professional Advisory Committee, Blue Choice,
Manchester NH (present)

MEMBER, QA Committee, Cigna Hcallhsource, Concord, NH
(present)

Adjunct Assistant Professor of Community and Family Medicine,
Dartmouth Medicai School, Hanover, NH

Outstanding Senior Resident Family Practice Center - Paramedical
Staff Award

Contributing Author "Complicated Obstetrics" Monograph
(publisited by \ht American Academy ofFamily Physicians)

HOSPITAL COMMITTEES
AND OFFICES at Franklin Regional Hospital

1990-1992 PRESIDENT/Chief of Staff
1990- 1992 CHAIRMAN, Executive Committee

DURING AfTiliation with Franklin Regional Hospital,
have served various committee roles

CURRENT CHAIRMAN nominating committee
CURRENT MEMBER, OB committee

PERSONAL DATA:

REFERENCES:

Born in Pittsburgh, PA .March 28, 1953.
Married to Brenda; children .Kari (19) and Keisey (17)

Personal and professional references provided upon request



Objective

Education

Work experience

career field.

2012-2016

MBA Healthcare Admlnlstratlon-ln process

1997-1999 Suffolk University
B.S. Developmental Psychology
• Dean's List

Manchester, NH

Boston. MA

Colby-Sawyer College New London, NH1995-1997

Major Psychology
Transferred to Suffolk University

August 2017-present LRGHealthcare
Practlco Manager " .
• . ■ Manage a busy family practice office
•  Process payroll and budget
•  Patient satisfaction and resolution
-  Hire and fire employees

Jan 2010-present Caring for Women
Medical Assistant

■ Manage provider schedules and out-patient care
• Train new employees

•  Inventory and supply ordering for three sites

Dec 2007-Jan 2010 Concord Hospital-FHC
Medical Assistant II

• Managed provider schedules, out-patient care
- Co-leader of Ql group for patient-centered care
• Trained new employees

Laconla, NH

Laconia. NH

Concord. NH

Harvard Vanguard Medical Wellesley. MAMay 2002-Dec2007
Clinical Assistant

- Provided cle^l and clinical assistance to providers and patients
■ Trained new employees

- Winner of Diamond Award of Excellence



References Available upon request



Busaba Karntakosol
Lead Medical Receptionist, Speare Primary Care, Plymouth Orthopedics

Authorized Co work in the US for any employer

Work Experience _ . -

Lead Medical Receptionist, Speare Primary Care, Plymouth Orthopedics
Speare Memorial Hospitai - Plymoutli. NH
201510 2018

White Mountain Eye Care

. Provide exceptional customer service to Patients. Family Members & Care Takers

. Fielding incoming calls and directing calls to appropriate departments
i Utilize Nextgen Software. Medltech Software
. Implementation 6< utilization of Cerner Software
• Collections & processing of co-pays & patient balances
• Maintaining doctors' calendars
• Processing of patient referrals

■  • Surgical Scheduling
• Medical Abstracting
• Responsible for training of new employees

. Verifying & Collection of necessary insurance information to ensure accurate billing
• Assist with daily deposits
. Maintaining.Inventory supplies
• Opening & Closing of office

Assistant Manager

Marshall's Dcpailment Store - Plymouth. NH
2005 to 2015 '

03264

. Ensured customer satisfaction through .employee training

. Encouraged positive attitudes to create outstanding customer experiences
• Management of 40 plus employees
• Ensure proper daily staffing
• Responsible for hiring of team members
• Processing of performance reviews
. Responsible for daily opening 6. closing procedures of store
• Daily Banking
• Processing of employee payroll

Assistant Store Manager



•Kolils Department Store • Tilton, NH

2003 to 2005 . ■ ^

03276

• • Ensured customer satisfaction through employee training
• Management of 80 plus employees
• Ensured positive customer experiences
• Responsible for hiring of team members
• Processing of performance reviews

Managed store payroll projections, productivity and controllable expenses in relation to sales trends
• Supervised credit solicitations to ensure store achieved its* goals
. • Assisted with loss prevention in conjunction with local police
• Responsible for Inventory control

Education

Bachelor Degree In Business
Bangkok Thonburi College
1993

Plymouth Regional High School
1991

Skills

Primary Care, Urgent Care, Internal Medicine



Maureen P Lehman

Objective: To further my professional career by obtaining a challenging
opportunity to apply my creative problem solving skills to foster a pos.tlve, team based
culture,

management experience with over 50 employees in fast paced restaurant.

^ ,, ^ Sept 2008-Feb 2010

■  IJfgXal Listant Associates Degree (Phi Thetta Kappa, honor society)
Coursework Includes:

•  Law and Ethics

•  MS word

•  Medical terminology

•  Laboratory procedures
•  Anatomy and physiology

Professional

Experience:

Mid State Health Center
June 2010-present

Subjective Intakes and vital signs when rooming patients.
Extensive phlebotomy and laboratory processing
Ordering supplies
Schedule appointments

Chart and document activities
Ql committee ,

Training In lab and new hires when on the floor with provider

Reference Furnished upon request



Stacey Lembo
Objective

lo obtoiii n ciirccrihiil will allow inc to succcssftilly integrate my skills and |)i-ofcssional experience in
posnion thai will allow mc to advance in my profession.

Education
■.. ■

A.S. Computer Science, Massachusetts Hay Community Collcuc. 1980
DatnPoim, 1983
l£ASI-:i:. 1990 , ' ■ '

-Experience

2001-Present Spcai-e Memorial Hospital I'lyinoulh. NM
Patient Financial Counselor

■  Assisting piiiicnis cx|>criencing financial hardships with several options
I?.valualc patients to see If they meet the requirements for our Comiminity Care Program. Ni l
Mcalih Access iVogrnm or any Slate and l-'cdcral programs

•  Help Prchatai, [wsi-deliveiy and new applicants with their npplicniions for Ni l Mcdicaid using the
NHhasy program
Handle in house billing c|ueslions, problems and complaints

ros Concord, NH
Provider Representative

Worked in the UDS I itic Nineteen account focused in the Provider Kelalions Dcpaiimcm
•  Created and Designed an on-line tracking system uiili/.ing IvxccI
•  Became well versed in Ni l Mcdictiid billing procedui-cs and facililalcd training via workshops in

order to properly cditcaied providers.

1988-1993 Blue Cross Blue Shield/ liDS' Boston. MA
Programmer Analyst

■  Provided assistance and suppon to iii-house personal and outside providers
Designed, pi-ograincd and tested a data ciKiy system in luiscl. a system that allowed for Input of
medical claims and paymctiis fioin groups and subscribci^

Compugraphic Wilmington. MA
Computer Programer

•  Analyzed, designed, ctxicd, tested debugging, iinplenienied and dociimcnicd holli flnliiie and batch
development program for the wiles and marketing application

•  functions as a progmmincr in a prodnclion environment



Carol G. Lurie

Work History

Nurse Practitloncr-per diem, 02/2013 to Current
Sooare Primary Care - Plymouth, NH

•  rdr"«:.ca7~„™ .«..ng when indiCcd.
I Prodded counscUng In health maintenance and disease management.

Nurse Practitioner, 09/1999 to Current Adolescent Medicine - Plym^ib. NH
^rx::«"dr=s"tb ca« si: "uS'cnt popu.,.i»

Nurse Practidoner, 08/1996 to 07/1999

Nurse Practitioner, 06/1994 to 07/1996

"r to pa,icn.a m an indcpandcn. Nurso Prac.itioncr pracicc.
Nurse Practitioner, 07/1987 to 05/1994 .J wu

°:7rvid;Tirira:^™t.;icSr^ " wadicina.
: DaUvf^W-asarvicastoatud^^
NurfiePcactitioner,06/1982io07/1987 .
Southaastam Haalth S<=™«5n'™c"a - At^ hmO.

Nurse Practitioner, 06/1980 to 06/1982Orady Memorial Hospital - Atlanta, OA .

Education
MSN: Family Nurse Practitioner. 1980
University of Pennsylvania - Philadelphia, PA
BS In Nursing; Nursing, 1976
Adelphi University - Garden City. NY
• Graduated Cum Laude.

Licensure and Certification
o APRN-FainUyNutsel^acUtioncf.New^psldre03l009.23.
0 Registered Nurse. New Hampshire 031^-21,
o ANCC Family Nurse Practitioner Certificauon 0021366-22.



Joseph Webb McKellar, LTCSW, LLC

EDUCATION

University of New England, Biddctbrd, Maine, Masters ot'Social Work, May 1997
Waslnngton & Jefferson College, Pcnnsylvnnia, nachclor of Arts: Psychology and English May
1987

Plymouth Area High School, Plymouth. New Hampshire, June 198!

UCENSENTUnEAND CERTIFICATIONS

Slate of New Haiirpshiic Licensed Indcpcitdcnl Clinical Social Woite •
Certified Level I & H EMDR Praclilioner

PllOFESSIONAUWOlUC EXPERIENCE

2013-Prcscnt Private PiacHcc: Joe Webb McKclIar, LICSW, LLC
50 Plcusanl Si, Concord, NH 03301

•' Counseling families, couples, individuals, teens and children
• Work with vavicly of complex cases and ulili/xj multiple a))proachcs depending

upon the needs of the client

2009-2013 Team Lender & Case Worker at Casey Family Services, Concord, NH
• Managed & supervisee! 4-6 social workers and 3 support staff in satellite office, Liltlclon,

NM and after school program in l-'ronkliji, NH.
. Member of mahagcmcnt team of 6 for 50+ employees with focus on staff training,

development, stale nnd federal compliance and achievement ofagcncy's mi.ssion of
services for children Olid families

1997-2009 Clinicnl Director, Child nnd Family Therapist at New England Salem
Children's Trust & the Hunter School, Rumiicy, NH

Supervised and managed clinical therapy department of two thci apists
Clinicnl supervision with direct care Muff
Coordinated adolc.sccnt psyehotropic medication plans with prescribing Psychiatrist
Managed approximately 15 eases
Conducted individual and family thempy sessions
Facilitated adolescent therapeutic groups
Client assessment, mental health evaluation and diagnosis
Development of Individual treatment plans
Court advocacy



1996-1997 Cliiilcfll Social Woi'k Intern at Rivcrbciid Communily Mental Health, Concord,
NH:

• Assistetl will) udolcscenls and families in the communily mental licallh system
• Developed social skills groups for adolescents

1995-1996 Medical Social Work Intern at Community Home Henllh and Hosptcc, Lacomo,
NH;

• Worked with patients and Ihmilies receiving home health carc and hospice carc ■
• Worked with local hospitals to coordinate client's discharge and future plans

1993-1997 Clinical Family Outreach Worker & Crisis Intci-vcntion Counselor at The
Wreath School ofPlymoull^NH:

• Case management of adolescent sexual offenders
.• UducDtcd and helped families of adolescent sexual offenders support treatment
•  Crisis intervention and management

1992-1993 AUernativcVrogrnm Co-Tcaclicr at Holderncss Central School, Holderncss,
NH

" ® Development and implcmcnlalion of school behavior management systems

1990-1992 Cliief Iiistriiclor at Homeward Dound Youth Fovcslry Camp, Brcwsler, MA

•  Led therapeutic orildoor adventure trips for adjudicatcc! youth

1988-1990 UesidcntiftI Teacher at Spaulding Youth Center, niton, NH

■  0 Direct care staff for abu.sed and neglected children in resitlcnlial placement

INTltf^SrS

Whilmvaier kayaking, skiing. Martial Arts, biking, dog tmining and raising poultry



ALAN EDMOND ROSEN, M.D.

CURRENT EMPLOYMENT

Family Physician

Mid-State Health Center

101 Boulder Point Drive, Suite 1
Plymouth, NH 03264

(603) 536-4000

AFFILIATION.

Affiliate Associate Professor

Adventure Education Program, Department of Health and Human Services
Plymouth State University
Plymouth, NH'03264

CONSULTING PHYSICIAN

Plymouth State Unlversity.Outdoor Center
Plymouth, NH 03264

RESIDENCY '

Albany Medical College Family Practice Residency
Albany, NY

MEDICAL

Doctor of Medicine

Albany Medical College

Albany, NY

BOARD CERTIFICATION

Dlplomate, American Board of Family Medicine
Board Certified/Recertified

PREVIOUS EMPLOYMENT

Research Engineer ^ •
IIT Research Institute

Annapolis, MD

UNDERGRADUATE COLLEGE

Bachelor of Science, Electrical Engineering

Rutgers University
New Brunswick, NJ

07/1997 • Present

07/1994-07/1996

08/1990-05/1994

1997, 2003, 2010

03/1978-07/1990

09/1973-05/1977



ALAN EDMOND ROSEN, M.D. PACE 2

PUBLICATIONS

["Effect of a Face Mask on Respiratory Water Loss During Sleep in Cold Conditions"}
[Wilderness and Environmental Medicine, 6,189-195] 1995

("A Simplified Model for Obtaining the Taylor-Fourier Series Coe///c/enrs of a Single Diode Mixer"}
[IEEE International Symposium on EMC, Boulder, Colorado] 1981

("Nonlinear Communications Receiver Model"}
[IEEE International Symposium n EMC, Baltimore, Maryland] 1980

LANGUAGES

English

OTHER EXPERIENCE.

EMT-basIc: Maryland 1983

Wilderness EMT: Wilderness Medical Associates 1986

Member, Appalachian Search and Rescue Confererice 1984-1990

Instructor, Appalachian Mountain Club Winter Mountaineering School 1985 -1989

INTERESTS

Telemark Skiing

Mountaineering

Hiking

Mountain Biking



CURRICULUM VITAE

CASEY ANN SHAFFER. RN BSN MSN

About Me:

Health care has been a continuous passion In my life. I am an advocate of continuous learning
and have based my career around that. I was drawn to becoming a nurse practitioner to expand
my knowledge base. 1 am dedicated, self-motivated, driven, compassionate, and empathetic,
striving to provide the best possible care to my patients.

Certifications: r

Registered Nurse 2011 - Present
-Current NH License #070749-21

Advanced Cardiac Life Support 2012-Present
Basic Life Support 2007 - Present
Pediatric Advanced Life Support 2016- Present

Education:

Walden University
College of Health Sciences
Master of Science in Nursing - Family Nurse Practitioner
Degree Awarded: February 10'\ 2019
CPA at completion: 3.90

Missouri Western State. University
School of Nursing
Bachelor of Science in Nursing
Graduation Date: May, 2011, Cum Laude .

Clinical Experience:

Family Nurse Practitioner Student
Walden University
Completed 50 Hours of clinical experience in Primary Care with Shannon Schachtner FNP at
Newport Health Center.
January 2'"'-January 22"^ 2019

Family Nurse Practitioner Student
Walden University
Completed 94 hours of clinical experience in Urgent Care with Dr. Mitchell Young at Dartmouth
Hitchcock Nashua.



November 29'^-Decembcr 26'*', 2018

Family Nurse Practitioner Student
Walden University
Completed 64 hours of clinical experience in Women's Health with Dr. Eileen Kirk at New-
London Hospital and Newport Health Center.
October 8'"-29'^ 2018

Family Nurse Practitioner Student
Walden University
Completed 90 hours of clinical experience in Women's Health with Teresa Baucrnschmidt,
WHNP and Kathryn DeWolf, CNM at Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center.
August 28'** - October 5"', 2018

Family Nurse Practitioner Student ■

Walden University
Completed 144 hours of clinical experience in the pediatrlc population with Dr. Kelley White
and Kelley Watkins, FNP at Mid-State Health Center.
May30"--July 18"'.2018

Family Nurse Practitioner Student
Walden University
Completed 144 .hours of clinical experience in adult primary care with Shannon Schachtner, FNP
at Newport Health Center
February 27'*'-May 1", 2018

Professional Positions;

Adjunct Clinical Faculty .-i
Colby-Sawyer College January 2019 - Present
1 am responsible for the clinical education ofthc Juniornursing students at Colby-Sawyer
College.

Registered Nurse - Life Safety
Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center January 2017 - Present
This position is a shared position in which my time is split between Life Safely and the Surgical
Trauma Intensive Care Unit. I respond to emergencies within the hospital grounds. This includes
responding to inpatients, outpatients, visitors, and staff that are suffering from an acute medical
event. ■

Registered Nurse - SurgiwI/Trauma ICU
Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center September 2014-Present
This position is a shared position in which my time is split between Life Safety and the Surgical

■ Trauma Intensive Care Unit. 1 provide care for critically ill patients using complex critical
thinking to assist in the recovery and healing of all body systems.



Registered Nurse - Medical/Surgical Traveling Nurse
Cross Country TravCorps August 2013- August 2014
1 was relief staffing for units in need across the country.

Registered Nurse - Transplant Medicine
University of Colorado Health - August 20II - August 2013
1 cared for solid-organ transplant patients immediately before and after organ transplantation as
well as those patients suffering from acute or chronic organ rejection.

Emergency Services Associate - Emergency Department
Mosaic Life Care Center 2008 - 2011
I was responsible for acquiring vital signs, performing phlebotomy and ECG's, applying splints,
transporting patients, and assisting in minor procedures of patients in the Emergency
Department.

Nursing.Assistant - Step-Down
Mosaic Life Care Center. 2007-2008
1 assisted in activities of daily living for the step-down unit patients.

Honors and Awards:

Missouri Western State University:
Dean's List: Fall 2008. Fall 2009. Spring 2010, Fall 2010
President's Honor Roll: Spring 2009.

Professional Memberships:

.Golden Key International Honors Society 2018 - Present
Sigma Theta Tau Nursing Honors Society 2010 - 2012/2018 - Present
American Academy of Nurse Practitioners 2017 - Present



Margot Shea

Professional Summary

Medical Office Specialist experienced in primary care and specialty office settings, scheduling patient
appointments, answering phone calls, check In and check out, maintaining patient account accuracy and
payments. Also responsible for referrals, authorizing and scheduling diagnostic testing and provide good
customer service.

Skill Highlights

Patient scheduling, phone Interactions, understanding of medical office software, maintaining account

accuracy, collecting and applying copays and payments, familiarity with Insurances, obtaining

authorizations and precertlflcations, sending referrals, customer service, team player with fellow staff

members

Professional Experience

Medical Office Specialist September 2006 to June 2016 Beacon Internal Medicine — Portsmouth, NH

As a Medical Office Specialist I answered phones, checked patients In and out, verified Insurances, took

and applied copays and payments: I scheduled appointments for our office, and also for specialists and .

testing, obtaining necessary authorizations and precertlflcations. I monitored the appointment

reminders. I answered patient questions and passed along messages. We went through much of the •

transition to electronic medical records and the computer changes that go along with that process.

Front office/Billing May 2003 to June 2005 Harbor Eyecare — Portsmouth, NH

I greeted patients, checked In and out, collected copays and payments. I scheduled appointments,

answered phone calls, dispensed contact lenses, and did some of the Insurance billing.

Front office Check In January 2003 to April 2003 Lamprey Healthcare — Newmarket, NH

Checked in patients, scheduled appointments in person and over the phone.

Front office/Medical AsslstlnR September 2001 to August 2002 Dover Foot Specialty — Dover, NH

I answered the phone, scheduled appointments, check out. I also took Xrays, performed ultrasound

therapy, prepared the rooms for patients, roomed patients, prepared equipment for procedures.

Front office August 1999 to September 2001 Eyesight Ophthalmic Services — Portsmouth, NH

My duties Included check In, check out, appointment scheduling, filing, answering the phone when

operator busy. Travel between the 4 offices to do the same function In each.

Education and Training

Bachelor of Arts: Anthropology, 1980 Bates College — Lewlston, ME



Kim Spencer

Authorized to work in the US for any employer

WORK EXPERIENCE

Psychotheraplet
Psychotherapist at Bahder Behavioral Services - Gilford. NH • July 2016 to Present
Provides individual psycJiolherapy to adults age 18-100+

> Supporting dienls with their addiction recovery, as Or. Bahder is a prescriber of Suboxone
> Common diagnoses treMed: anxlety.disorders. mood disorders, addiclion, adjustment disorders and more

Medical Social Worker
Lakes Region General Hospital • Laconia, NH • November 2008 to May 2016

■ Provided short-term crisis intervention, trauma Intervention, emotional support, short-term counseling, and
coping/ adaptation strategies, to patients end tamllies dealing with illness, trauma, and anticipatory grief/
bereavement ■ • i

> Collaboroted with multidisciplinary healthcare team to Identify, asses, and assist those with complex social
and emotional needs .. .

> Advocated for and supported women with high risk pregnancies, predominantly women prescribed
Suboxone ^ 4i, •,

Supported post partum women and families, primarily assisting women prescnbed Suboxone and their
newboms with extended hospital admissions.

Child Therapist
Genesis Behavioral Health - Laconia. NH • July 2004 to November 2008

Provided individual and family therapy to children, primarily ages 3-8, and their families
»• Provided on-going support and case management services to children and their families
> Collaborated with family and community members: biological family, formal and informal caregivers, police,
school professionals, court appointed guardians and guardian ad litems, Early Head Start, elc.

EDUCATION

MSW

University of New Hampshire
August 2002 to May 2004

BSW

Plymouth States College

January 1992 to December 1995

SKILLS

Notary Public. Justice of the Peace



CERTIFICATIONS/LICENSES

LICSW

January 2019



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Staff List Form

Division of Public Health Services

COMPLETE ONE STAFF LIST FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Bidder/Program Naoi^: Mid-State Health Center

NameofRFP: Primary Care -

Budget Period: April i. 2020 - June 30.2020

;^Other^ur^for,=^
■^P^6i^Amnt Fandedit

ri''."-'va:saS-Vr^-:Houn per;
S^Week^A

fProjected'Hrly^Rateas!
• A' ®Si^r^BudgetPe'ri& PositionPositiob 58,320.00 Plymouth57,072.00$1,248.0040.00$16.00Kamtakosol. BusabaPharmacy 519.931.60 Both516.941.865^989.7440.00S38.33McKeflar. Joseph W 522.339.20LCSW Both518,988.3253.350.8840.00S42.96Spencef. Kim 58.236.80 PlymouthLCSW 57.001.28$1,235.5240.00SI 5.84Shea. Maraot $12,105.60 Plymouth$10,289.76Ciencai $1,815.8440.00S23.28Lembe. Staeey L $17,394.00 PlymouthBusiness $14,784.9052,609.1040.00S33.45Perry. Beth P $13,000.00 Plymouth$12,220.00RN 5780.0040.00S25.00Dcoooffy. Shannon 511,757.20 PlymouthQuality Steward $11,051.77$705.4340.00

40.00
$22.61Lehmen, Maureen $9,708.40 BnstolChnical $8,748.37$960.03$18.67Begane. Amy $50,856.00 BothPatient Account Rep $47,804.64$3,051.3640.00$97.80Berry DO. AndreaFamily Medicine $39,113.10 Bnstol$36,766.31$2346.7930.00$100.29

$81.55
piederich MD. Gary
Arsenault MO. Diane

Family Medicine $31,804.50 Plymouth$29,896.23Sl.908.2730.00
$53,606.80Medicine PlymouthFami $50,390.39$3,216.4140.00$103.09Rosen MO. AlanFamily Medicine

APRN
$23,301.20 Both$21,903.13$1,398.0740.00$44.81Shaffer APRIN. Casey Plymouth$17,475.90$16,427.35$1,048.5530.00$44.81lorie APRN. CanjlAPRN

$338,950.30$310386.30$28.664.00
otal Salaries by Source

•Please list which site(s) each staff member works at, if bidder has multiple sites. Not applicable to WIC.


